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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS HEEE
Audited results for the
year ended 30th April,
BENA=THLEEE2RERXEE Increase/
2007 2006 (Decrease)
—EELHE —ERTAEF B OhD)
Turnover (HK$’'M) EXERE (5&EET) 308 414 (106)
Loss for the year (HK$'M) KNEZEIE (H5&EZET) (81) (25) (56)
Loss per share (HK$) BRE®E (Ex) (0.11) (0.04) (0.07)
EBITDA (HK$’M) (Note 1) EBITDA (& & & T) (K1zE1) 9 32 (23)
(Audited) (Audited)
As at As at Increase/
30th April, 2007 30th April, 2006 (Decrease)
(REZR) (' %)
R-ZEZELHF RZEZERF
mA=+H mA=+H #m GR)
Net debt gearing ratio (%) FEEE AN E (%)
(Note 2) (Ki:E2) 28% 26% 2%
Notes: M aE -

1. Earnings before interest, tax , depreciation and amortisation 1.
(“EBITDA”) is computed as loss before tax plus depreciation,
finance costs, impairment losses, share of loss of an
associate, and (losses) gains arising from changes in fair

value of derivative financial instruments.

2. Net debt gearing ratio is defined as total debts, including 2.
borrowings, trust receipt loans and bills payable less bank

balances and cash over shareholders’ equity.

BAS - BE - MEREENRA
([EBITDA]) Jh LABR BTGB - I E ~ B &
KA RERBR  DEBRERRBRERITES
MIARTEEHELEZ (BR) kastE -

FRBEALEXYEEREBERAR (BHEE
& EREBERRENRER) RRTESRR
ReBIABRER
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GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATIONS AND TURNOVER ANALYSIS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

Results for the year

For the year ended 30th April, 2007, the Group reported a
turnover of HK$308 million (2006: HK$414 million), a decrease
of HK$106 million or 26% and a consolidated net loss of
HK$81 million (2006: HK$25 million), an increase of HK$56
million loss as compared with last year. Basic loss per share
was HK$0.11 (2006: HK$0.04). EBITDA, computed as loss
before tax plus depreciation, finance costs, impairment losses,
share of loss of an associate, and (losses) gains arising from
changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments,
dropped to HK$9 million (2006 : HK$32 million). The net
debt gearing ratio was slightly increased from 26% at the

beginning of year to 28% at the balance sheet date.

Performance Review

As reported in the interim report for the six months ended
31st October, 2006, the first half year trading results were
negatively affected by an abrupt drop in sales to ASAT
Holdings Limited (“ASAT”) resulting from ASAT shifting of its
sales mix away from leadframe based products. In response
to this sudden drop in demand from ASAT, the Company
has stepped up its efforts on its cost reduction and
productivity improvement programmes. Furthermore, the
Group continued its customer diversification drive by reducing
its sales reliance on ASAT from 43% in the last financial year

to 25% in the year under review.

FEXE
BE-_TTLHENAZTHLEE  A£EK
18 2 % %% 5308,000,0008 7T (T T/NF ¢
414,000,000% 7T) * B & # 4 106,000,0007%
TTH26% c AEEBREF I HEEEBRFER
81,000,000/ 7T (Z T T /X & : 25,000,000/
7o) EEAFLE - EHEE 56,000,000 5T
EREAREBEROAVEILT (ZEERFE  0.048
T) cBRAE - BIE WEREHARN
(TEBITDA] @ LARTEAIEE - MNTE - BEK
K REEE DEBERABERITESR®
TARATEEZBEEZ (BB WamatE) T’
%9,000,000/ 7t (ZZ = ;<4 : 32,000,000/
TT) c FRABEARLEHRFEYZ26%K A EFAZE
HERZ228%

HEEERE
BEHE_ZEENFT+A=Z+—HLEAEAZF
HA$R 45 BT - B S ASAT Holdings Limited ([ £
KX )) S EHEEHESEHSIRIEER - BEW
MK ZHEERATK At EFEF &
XBEXINEATE - BTENKRBZEXHNT
KT ARARBEE B NEE KA K
THEENRAGTE o I NREBEEREGRD
BER - BAOE SRR ERE - MK E B
ZHEHERE—EYBEE 243% N EEM
BEE225% o
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERE®E

Major associate — ASAT

During the year under review, ASAT recorded a decrease in
net revenue by 9% from US$182.1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,412 million) in fiscal year 2006 to
US$164.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,289
million), with a net loss of US$35 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$274 million) for the year ended 30th April,
2007 on its accounts prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
as compared to a net loss of US$42.4 million (equivalent to

approximately HK$329 million) in its last corresponding year.

On 1st September, 2006, Mr. Li Tung Lok, director of the
Company, was also appointed as acting chief executive officer
of ASAT. With the move to China finished and customers
having qualified the new facility, ASAT is ramping up
production at the new facility. The China factory is generating
significant cost savings and productivity gains. Sales for the
fiscal quarter ending 31st October, 2007 and fiscal quarter
ended 31st July, 2007 are expected to show sequential
quarterly increases, with gross margin for the fiscal quarter
ended 31st July, 2007 estimated to be approximately 12%,
as compared to an average of approximately 9% for the year
ended 30th April, 2007.

FEBE QR — LMK
REBEERN  ERNBEEHEFER-FZ
7N B B B 2 182,100,0003 7T (M0 & R 4
1,412,000,000/% 7T.) T B& 9% % 164,800,000 7T
(18 & 1 491,289,000,000/87C) - RIFXE L E
Rz gt RAFMGRR KA - BHEXFHH
42,400,000 7t (18 & 7 £9329,000,0007 7T) 2
BIEFHELR  AXRBEE_TTLFMNA
=+ R IEFE 2 B85 /35,000,000% 7T (18
& 7 49274,000,000% 7T) °

RZZEZRFNA—B  ARAEEFTRELSE
ENMEZERRRXZBETRAER - BED
TRBREETELRRABNBENFEEFPER
% REXEMBEFBEETEE - PERK
FrAIMARERAN r UAIRALEESN -BEZ
ZE+FE+ A=+ BLMBEERBE_ZT
FLFELA=ZT-"RALUBFEZHERA L
BEREFELER M8 E2E_FTTLFLA=
T—BLEMBFEEZENELORI12%  MBE
—ETLFNA=ZTHLEFEZFHENER
9% °
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

The Group held 42.48% (2006: 42.42%) of ASAT as at 30th
April, 2007. The Group’s carrying value of ASAT was nil (2006:
Nil). The Group has continued not to recognise its share of
loss of ASAT except for any additional investment in ASAT
comprising of a HK$4 million (2006: HK$30 million) loan
portion of convertible preferred shares in ASAT, which formed
part of the investment in ASAT, and a receipt of preferred
shares dividend in the current year in the form of ordinary
shares of ASAT at a value of approximately HK$7 million
(2006: HK$3 million), received by the Group due to its holding
of convertible preferred shares in ASAT which carry a
preference dividend rate of 183% per annum payable semi-
annually either in cash or in ordinary shares, at the option of
ASAT. The unrecognised share of losses for the year
amounted to HK$109 million (2006: HK$153 million) and the
accumulated unrecognised share of losses amounted to
HK$340 million (2006: HK$231 million).

On 8th December, 2006, ASAT announced an intention to
change its American Depository Shares (“ADS”) ratio from 5
ordinary shares per 1 ADS (the “Old ADS ratio”) to 15 ordinary
shares per 1 ADS (the “New ADS ratio”), representing the
equivalent of a 1-for-3 reverse split. The New ADS ratio took
effect at the close of business on 22nd December, 2006 and
was in place at beginning of the next business day on 26th
December, 2006.

On 15th August, 2007, ASAT received a letter from the
NASDAQ Staff stating that its market value of listed securities
has been below US$35 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$273 million) as required for continued inclusion by
Marketplace Rule 4320(e)(2)(B) (the “Rule”). Therefore, in
accordance with Marketplace Rule 4320(e)(2)(D), ASAT will
be provided 30 calendar days, or until 14th September, 2007,
to regain compliance. If compliance with this Rule cannot be
demonstrated by 14th September, 2007, Staff will provide
written notification that ASAT’s securities will be delisted.

RZTEZTLFMA=+H  AEBEIFHLKX
42.48% (Z BTN - 42.42%) 2 HEs - NEH
FEREAXERCEABEAS (ZTET R F :
Z) AKBEEEBFLBERESEREXZE
B EREERXZEMMBINEERIRSIN - A
BIEBKERXIRE —BH 2 BRI ALK E
4 184,000,000/ 7T (ZZE =754 : 30,000,000/
TO)ZERED - REAKBERERFEEREKX 2 AT
BRE AR+ T A AR S LA B4R SO E AR 77 = UK
B & 1 %49 7,000,000 T (Z T T X F -
3,000,000 7T) 2 BEKRARE - ZF A HR(E T
MBI ¥ FIRER X ZREUR S KRR
FRAIXAEERBRETF13% - NEEFRER
2 {5 k518 A109,000,00058 70 (Z T T /< F ¢
153,000,000 7T) © i Rt RERZ D 1EEE
#340,000,0007 7T (Z T 754 : 231,000,000

AIT) °

R-ZBERF+_ANR E£EKXEHREEE
FHXBERAAES (BREFLE - B8R
BB FRRREBR ([EREEFLE]) &
FRERATEFNRIGREER ([FETE
FHER]) - HERZILIZ L PIETTE R D
DF - HERBFLEER -_FTRF+ A
Tt BREERHEARREER - YR TEE
¥ -_ZTZERET_A-+"BRAERLE

SETR

RZZETELtFNAT+AHB  £HRXEE
NASDAQE% B 2 tift - BIAE FHEH < MER
7 35,000,000 7T (18 & M #)273,000,0007%
7%)  BINASDAQT % #3 7€ 28 4320(e)(2)(B) & (47
E)FMERBEMNATISZ TRFTE - Bt -
RIBET 5 R E F4320(0) QDR » RERNERR
EEBERXE_ZEZLFNATEAL - KAE
EREREZER - MR ZZETtFNLATM
BIMAREBARAZRTE  BEAFHEDR
Mo BEEXBLRE -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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On 21st September, 2007, ASAT announced that it appealed
to NASDAQ against the delisting and in the meantime the
ADS remained listed and traded on the NASDAQ Capital
Market, pending the results of the hearing of the appeal. In
the opinion of the directors of ASAT, the appeal is expected
to be heard within 45 days and even if unsuccessful, it expects
trading in its securities to continue on the Over-the-Counter

Bulletin Board market.

By reference to the closing price of ADS at New ADS ratio of
ASAT on the NASDAQ Market at balance sheet date, the
market value of ASAT attributable to the Group as at 30th
April, 2007 was HK$176 million (2006: HK$422 million).

Outlook

In June 2007, the Semiconductor Industry Association (“SIA”)
lowered its 2007 forecast for worldwide sales growth of
semiconductors from 10% to 1.8% despite the strong unit
demand driven by healthy growth in major end market and
projected a new forecast of a 5.4% compound annual growth
rate for year ended 2006 through 2010. SIA added that the
rapid price attrition in three key market segments is the major

factor contributing to lower growth than previously expected.

Having regard to current market demand and increased sales
to ASAT, as ASAT re-balances its own sales mix which
includes the use of leadframes, we would expect certain
improvements in our operating performance on the basis of
revenue increases while maintaining the present low cost

structure.

R-BELFNA=+—0  ZEXEHEMA
NASDAQIRH! £ - RESHBFBIE - TRA
WA - HIEES DB ENASDAQE AT £
REE UELHBAZER SEXZEE
BB LHRBREBEERSRAREST - T
B EFRARY - B S AR X E 551

REZBEREE -

DERHFARABFLRREEX ZBABSTNGE
HHAENASDAQM 2 T E - AEER _ZTF
+tFOA=ZT+THREEREKRKXZTER
176,000,000/ 7T (ZZZ X : 422,000,000/8
7T) °

Al =
BERKTHZREERTIRINEMLT
Ko EFBRTEHE (SADR_FTLERX
ARE T L FERYERHEIEROTAR
H10%fEE1.8%  WEHMBRAERE —_TTRF
HEZZ-TFE2EAFHERER5.4% ° SIATR
KL EZEAXEMEOBNERRETER
BYRRENRRERAH2EIBEAE -

ERREZMEFR  MERERXEH FEHE
AEWMHEHREG  HPBESIREZER M
SIBIBMMALEERNZHER  HAKEEYE
HEZBMOER LEEXEHAE —TRE - 5
— T E A AR R R AR A o
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Financial Review

During the year, the Group has obtained a new other secured
term loan of RMB22 million (equivalent to HK$22 million) and
repaid certain bank and other loans in a sum total of HK$27
million. As at 30th April, 2007, the Group’s total outstanding
debts of HK$82 million (2006: HK$84 million) comprised of
nil (2006: HK$2 million) secured bank loans, HK$37 million
(2006: HK$34 million) trust receipt loans and bill payables,
HK$35 million (2006: HK$37 million) other secured loans, nil
(2006: HK$1 million) other unsecured loans, and HK$10 million
(2006: HK$10 million) loan from a director. In terms of
maturity, borrowings of HK$82 million (2006: HK$71 million)
or the whole of the total debts will be repaid within one year
(2006: 85% repayable within one year and 15% repayable in
the second year). In terms of interest bearing, HK$72 million
(2006: HK$74 million) was interest bearing and HK$10 million
(2006: HK$10 million) was interest free. In terms of currency
denomination, approximately 28% (2006
denominated in US Dollars, approximately 43% (2006: 41%)

8%) was

was denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), approximately 29%
(2006: 51%) in HK Dollars.

In November 2006, ASAT announced that the conversion
price of its convertible preferred shares had been reset from
US$0.45 per ADS to US$0.325 per ADS at Old ADS ratio on
31st October, 2006 in accordance with its Restated Articles
of Association. As at 30th April, 2007, the fair values of the
conversion option of the convertible preferred shares and the
warrants valued by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited
amounted to approximately US$5.8 million (2006: US$6.3
million) or equivalent to approximately HK$45 million (2006:
HK$49 million) and US$0.7 million (2006: US$1 million) or
equivalent to approximately HK$5 million (2006: HK$8 million)

Bt 7% B R

FRN - AEERS-—BEINNEGBEERERA
R #22,000,0007T (#8& 722,000,000 7T) + Iz
BEE TRTREAMERE ££27,000,0008 7T °
RZZEZLFMA=1+H AEEERERLE
& 18 A& ££82,000,0008 L (=T = X
84,000,000 7T) - HP W& (ZZTZRF -
2,000,000 7T) AEMIRITER - EEBIRER
K FE f+ Z % 37,000,000 7t (Z T TN F ¢
34,000,000 7T) ~ Hth A # # & 535,000,000
B (ZZFZ/NF + 37,000,000870) ~ W (=
T34 1 1,000,00087m) EthEEKFERRE
= B 310,000,000 & (Z T XN F
10,000,000/ 7t) - £ E BE KRBT @E -
82,000,000/ 7t (ZZZF /<4 : 71,000,000 7T.)
SEHEERBEEAR —FREERE (ZTTRF -
85% BN —FNEERISHERE_FHEE) -
£ 85 ®E - 72,000, ooo;’%ﬁ(:%%/—\i :
74,000,000/ 7T) &t £ B+ 110,000,000

T (ZEEERNF ¢ 10000000,%73)7%%“\
Ko EEEAEIE @ H28% (BT /NF :
8%) LAETL BB » #4)43% (ZFZE/RF : 41%)

UARE (TARE]) BEBEA » #29% (ZZTZ X
F:51%) WABTTREN o

RZFERF+—F  #ERNEMREHESR
ZHEBERAR  H_TERFTA=F+—H
ERABEATRRELER CBEKE  RERE

nnP

oy
S
kn&:! Fi

F R A ERTELEF0.45EFE TR AT
#0.325%% 7T ° ;:%;ﬁtimﬂzwﬂ g EEI@Z
R EENGERARAGMEZ AIBRRKRESL
BRBEMMREZRERBRESE 2 2T ED 5
#) /5,800,000% 7t (ZZZE /54 : 6,300,0003%
JT) S & R #4945,000,0008 T (ZE TN F ¢
49,000,000/ 7t.) & 47 &700, ooo%m(_? 2/
% : 1,000,000% 7T) =k 8 & 7 495,000,000 7T
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respectively, resulting in losses arising from changes in fair
values of approximately HK$7 million (2006: gains of HK$28

million) recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Distribution
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year (2006: Nil).

Pledge of Assets

At 30th April, 2007, plant and equipment with a carrying
value of HK$32 million (2006: HK$67 million) were pledged
to secure certain banking facilities, bank loan and other loans

granted to the Group.

Capital Expenditure

During the year ended 30th April, 2007, the Group invested
HK$10 million (2006: HK$15 million) in acquiring property,
plant and equipment. This capital expenditure was financed

essentially from internal resources.

Employees and Emolument Policy

At 30th April, 2007, the Group, other than ASAT, employed
approximately 2,140 employees (2006: 2,420 employees). The
Group maintained its remuneration policy comprising salary
and other benefits including share option scheme as an

integral part of Total Quality Management.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of
the Company are decided by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board, having regard to their individual
duties and responsibilities with the Company, remuneration

pbenchmark in the industry and prevailing market conditions.

(ZZZ X4 : 8,000,000/87T) * HAFEE
B 7 BB 47,000,000 7T (ZEZ N F - WES
28,000,000/ 70) Rér & WM m KR P HER °

7 ik
EETRERAFEENRBEL (ZTEA
6 fm) o

EERM

R-TTLFMA=Z+H EHEHEH
32,000,000/ 7t (ZEZE /X4 : 67,000,000/ 7T)
ZHERREBEFER  URGETAEEY
EFROTME  RITERMAMER -

BEXREX
BE_TTLHHFNAZTAHLEE  A£EER
& 10,000,000 7T (ZZEZ /4 : 15,000,000/
TOREME  HBEREHE  ZEAFAXEEH
NEBERBEAS -

EERMEBER
RZZTZLFNMA=1+H ' A%5E (TRELK
M) EAH2140% (ZTZTRNF : 2,420%) B
B - AEBEEEFTUAZHMESBRIERET
REMBAHEEERESS  EFRE2EMEE
Bz—8n o

ARBEZENEREBABZHEHFMNEZE
ERERBBEENARAZERBE - 17X H M
HEERERMAMRTELAESTSHE -
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Appreciation

I, on behalf of the board, would take this opportunity to
express our sincere gratitude to all staff for their valuable
contribution to the Group. Further, | would like to express
appreciation to the Group’s customers, business associates

and shareholders for their continual support.

By Order of the Board

Li Tung Lok

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd October, 2007

B
ERET-BERAKEELHEEER AAE
RREZGAMMABARLHE - AT
BERPAKRETF,  EBBHRERZEA
e

EKEEZm
FE
2 [5) 44

&% —FELF+A-t=A

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2007



15

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEBAEBAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Tung Lok, aged 55, is the founder of the Group. He
has been an executive Director and Executive Chairman of
the Board since January 1989. He is also a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He has a B. Sc.
Degree in Chemical Engineering and over 25 years of
experience in servicing the semiconductor industry. He has
been a Director of ASAT Holdings Limited (“ASAT”), a
company listed on the NASDAQ Market and an associated
company of the Company, since October 1999 and was
appointed as Acting Chief Executive Officer of ASAT on 1st
September, 2006.

Mr. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin, aged 48, has been an executive
Director of the Company since January 2006. He is also the
Group Financial Controller of the Company, a position which
he has held since joining the Company in June 1999, and
was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on
1st September, 2006.

Mr. Kwan has a B. Com. Degree from the University of
Southern Queensland, Australia. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Prior to joining the Group in June 1999, he had over 19
years of auditing, accounting and corporate advisory
experience with Price Waterhouse (now
PricewaterhouseCoopers) and listed and private groups of
conglomerates in Hong Kong and overseas. For the preceding
seven years, he held various financial control management
positions in the China International Trust and Investment

Corporation group of companies.

BITES

TEGEE F RFESSE BASBEZAIHA ©
BE—N\NF-—ARRARZHITEERE
EEHTER BIAREARATFMEEG 2K
B WA BIRESTEN Ry EE
TE®25%F « RB — N NANF+ ARBASAT
Holdings Limited ([#£{x3]) (REEZ2EE S
RHEHE 8 BHRERF(INASDAQM 5 2 £
RARERBIZHERR) CEERR_TER
FNA—BREZEERERX 2 BRITHAX -

BRSBTS A-FTEAE AR
HERAARTES - REAXDAZEEH
BEE B AANERAMARRAKEH
EUBL - TR=FTAENA—AEEEA
AR ZITHAH -

MEERARNEELHAZHBE LB -
SREBHFAREHAMAERELETMAE

BXEE -

R—ANANFRNANMARNEER - REHEES
BTN BT (NRAEZ B EBUKERTEE
Br) REFERBINZ EHRILAKERRE
B 2REB19FF S REEEHESTE
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAEBAES

Mr. Kwan was a director of ASAT Holdings Limited, a
company currently listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market and
an associated company of the Company, from November
2003 to March 2004 and was reappointed in March 2006.
Mr. Kwan also serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company, all being unlisted companies. He was a non-
executive director of Wafer Systems Limited, whose shares
have been listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange since May 2002, between May 2001 and
August 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson, aged 51, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company in
October 1994. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the

Nomination Committee of the Company.

He qualified as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1980 and
in Hong Kong in 1982. He was a senior partner of Richards
Butler from 1985 to 2001 where he established the corporate
and commercial department. He has had wide experience in
corporate finance and cross-border transactions, including
mergers and acquisitions, regional telecommunications, debt
and equity capital markets, corporate reorganisations and
privatisation of stated-owned enterprises in the People’s

Republic of China.

BEER_TE=F+—HAZ2_ZTWF=H
2N A Al 2 B & A 5] ASAT Holdings Limited
(REEANASDAQEAMHZ LMz AR) 2 &
ECWRZEEF-ABREHZRE - @BiE
NEERARETHBAR (2HHAFELTA
AZEF -BR-_ET—FARAE-_ZTTLF
NEBBTABRERGAERDR ZIERITE
FRATNIRNE-SE_FRABRERM
BIZEMR £ oo

BYFHITES

BEELRE  BFESIR R ANAEFETAE
RERKRABIUIFNTESE - WIT/ERAT
FWZEeXTFE BRZEQENMRERBRZREEL

W — NN\ZFERIG RAE B K L BB A o S 2 B
B RER AN\ _FREEBREREME
BeR—NAN\RAFZE_TT—FH  BRAERA
BEMITZERABA  BRITNEERBE
EREBEIMA RELERENBEERSE
RUKBLES HEER BEHEREATER
5 CEEAMBHTEARKMBRELE
CETEERBELR -
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He was a senior advisor to the Board of Director of PCCW
Limited, a Hong Kong-listed company between August 2001
and September 2003. He is an independent non-executive
director of Pacific Basin Shipping Limited, a Hong Kong-
listed company and an executive director of First Pacific
Company Limited, a Hong Kong-based and Hong Kong-listed
investment and management company with principal business
interests related to telecommunications and consumer food
products. He also serves as a commissioner of First Pacific’s
subsidiary in Indonesia, PT Indofood Sukses Makmur Tbk,
an Indonesia-listed company, and as a director of First
Pacific’s associated company in the Philippines, Level Up!
International Holdings Pte Limited, an unlisted company. In
November 2005, he became a non-executive director of India
Capital Growth Fund Limited which is listed on the AIM market

of the London Stock Exchange.

Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert, aged 66, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since April 2000. He
is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination

Committee of the Company.

Mr. Sze is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and was a partner in an international firm

of accountants with which he practised for over 20 years.

BR-_ZEE—FENAE_ZTT=FNAHEE
EER LT AREMBNAERAAETEAR
B BN ABBLEMARAKTEFMESEES
BRARIZBIFATEZTRE - RNFTARAQA
ZHTES  REA HEERBBERNEE
FHzREERAF  HFrEXBRALEEA
MEBHERD - BT EEFEF—AFUREEZ
M@ & £ 2 & PT Indofood Sukses Makmur
Tok B8 - AKITRE-—RNFZIFEERE,L
T Bt % X 7 Level Up! International Holdings Pte
LimitedZ % - R=_TFAF+— A - RHE
RBBBFRGABEREMS T ZIndia
Capital Growth Fund LimitedZ JE11TE&E = -

SLERLE  RFeen BE_TETFNAR
RRABBIFRITES - WTR/ARABERE
BgzIF THEARAFMEZESRIIES
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He is a non-executive director of a number of Hong Kong
listed companies, including Asia Satellite Telecommunications
Holdings Limited, China Travel International Investment Hong
Kong Limited, Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited, Min Xin Holdings Limited, Nanyang
Holdings Limited, Hop Hing Holdings Limited, SW Kingsway
Capital Holdings Limited and Television Broadcasts Limited.
He was a non-executive director of First Mobile Group
Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange since December
2000, between September 2000 and June 2005. He is also a
member of the Shanghai Committee of the Chinese People’s

Political Consultative Conference.

Mr. Wong Chun Bong, Alex, aged 48, has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since
April 2000. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the

Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Wong is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong, and
is the proprietor of C.B. Wong & Co. Certified Public
Accountants. He was the Chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA) Hong Kong in 1999/2000. He also served
as a member of the Inland Revenue Department Users’
Committee from 1998 to 2003. He has over 25 years’
experience in auditing, taxation, accounting and financial
management. Mr. Wong did not hold any directorship in any

other listed public companies in the last three years.

BAZRAEBLMRARZIENTES  Hb
FEMNEEERERAR BEEFKRBEERKLE
BROA - RFRITEEFRAAF - KSR
SEERAF - BESEEABMRAA - Nanyang
Holdings Limited - & BEEBR AR - EE®
BIERBERAFTIREREEBERARF -« KH=
EEEFNAZET RS SAHEEEE —
EASEERAR(ERNHBE-_ZETZTF+-A
R FAEIZEIR ETH) 2 FRITES - BITR
FREARBAMEGRLLETEESEE -

TIRABELE  BF485m B_TETTFNAR
ARABFATES - BARBARAIRLEEE
ZEF YHEBERZESRFMEESZX

E o

BEEERTRRESHIMR IR SAMEL
RZBEEAN BR—AAN/ —ZEEEFRE
BEF AR RAEACCATENERITE
Begrzek TR-AMANANEEZE_ZTZT=FMH
EEEEREEREEAEEIZEEEE - &
REBB2FET B FFRMBEERL
BoBAARNBE-FUEETEM LT AA
ZIEMEFTRE

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2007



19

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEBAEBAER

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Lam Cho Yuk, Lily, aged 44, joined the Group in April
2002 and was appointed as Company Secretary of the

Company in March 2006.

She is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She holds a
B.Sc. Degree in Accounting and Statistics from University of
Southampton and a M. Sc. Degree in Management Science
from Imperial College of Science and Technology, University

of London.

DEWE
HBELL  BFE R-TE-FEAN
ATEBER-TTAF= ARZERADH
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Board of Directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30th April, 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture
and sale of integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks and

stiffeners and investment holding.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30th April, 2007
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page
&1l

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS
Movements in the share capital and warrants of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DISTRIBUTED RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders at 30th April, 2007, amounted to HK$40 million
(2006: HK$44 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and

equipment at an aggregate cost of HK$10 million.

Details of this and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Note

13 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEgREENEEZEBEE _TTLFMOA=T
BLEFEZFREEEREAVBHRE -
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AICEBRXBRBENRHERKER
AR B NeR 1R R EIERR -

E
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BEHENESIEZRARAR -

e e
AARFRRARBREEZ BDHNE
B RK M 523 -
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R-ZEZLFEMA=+H ' AARAHEDIIETF
i% B 2 % #& £ 40,000,000/ 7T (Z B ZE N4
44,000,000 7T) ©
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 30th April, 2007, the percentages of the
Group’s turnover and purchases attributable to its major

customers and suppliers are as follows:

Turnover attributable to: Fiih & %4 -
Largest customer BEAEF
Five largest customers hARER

Purchases attributable to: BIKEEZS %0
Largest supplier = AHER
Five largest suppliers ARHER

ASAT Limited is the largest customer of the Group referred
to above. Details of the transactions between the Group and
ASAT Limited are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements. ASAT Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ASAT Holdings Limited (“ASAT”), an indirect
associate of the Company. In the opinion of the directors,
such transactions were carried out on terms no less favourable

than terms available to or from independent third parties.

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the year did a
director, an associate of a director or a shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors of the
Company owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five

largest customers or suppliers.

FTEEFRHAER
BE-_TTLEMA=TALFE TERF
REEEFEA R EXERRBELES
BT

%

25
57

26
56

BENBHAERAAA EXFABZAREERZA
BEP ABAREEEZEXBEERAAZR
S BH RS SR KM 33 o KB
BR QA AKARDB 2 MHEEBE R A ASAT
Holdings Limited (#4432 |) 2 2 BB A7 °
BEERR ZERGZFIUNTBERBILE=
TS A T 2 &K °

BREbdES  RARABRES  EBBALHK
RAARBDEEAAREA A RFCHTRAE
B5%E) RANFAEMEREYLBEEESARER
REPHH R EMER -
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report are:

Mr. Li Tung Lok

Mr. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson*
Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert*

Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex*

(Executive Chairman)

* Independent non-executive director

In accordance with the bye-law 102A of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Messrs. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin and Sze Tsai To Robert,
will retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The
Executive Chairman, Mr. Li Tung Lok, is not subject to

retirement by rotation by virtue of Bermuda law.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 30th April, 2007, the interests and short position of the
directors of the Company and their associates in the share
capital and underlying shares attached to warrants or share
options of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”) or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) of the issued share capital of the Company

were as follows:

EE
AEERBEAREAMZADAESHOT :

FRLEE
B 5 o A
REEELE”
SLE R T A
FIRAMELE"

(#ITEE)

* BILIHHTEF

BB QR 2 R RIARISE 102A1%k - BEEEIR R4
REBEEEBRNBETZERAFREG L
BT RAERYBBEEEE ATEEETR
LEERBEARELVEABESE -

ESHEAROEREBERD 2ERER
RR

RZZEZLFOA=+H  ARARBEFK
IR R ([R5 R AR GRD])) F 352 M KL Z
BrafirdE  ARRESERBEEIBMEAL
B AR R S CE AR R B 2 R e R A AR
ERBEEMMAEERD 2BENAR - AR
EMXAES LA ([ EMARR) A ED
RAEZETEFRXHZBETAAMG AR
AREBHERSGMBRAR ([BRFT]) 2R
RAEBITHRAERLDT ¢
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (Continued)

(@) The Company

EEHEROREBROZERR
KA )

(a)

2NN

Number of issued ordinary shares/

underlying shares of the Company

ARABRTEER/ ABROHE

Percentage
of the issued

share capital

of the Company
Personal Family Corporate Y N
Name of director interests interests interests Total ERTRA
EEf3 BAES REER DRER @t BAl
Mr. Li Tung Lok FREEE
- Ordinary shares in issue -BETTAR 273,794,282 3,000,000 18,590,944 295,385,226
(Note Kizta) (Note i z£D)
- Listed warrants -t mRREE 37,113,122 511,235 3,168,118 40,792,475
(Note Kizta) (Note i z£D)
Long position e 310,907,404 3,611,235 21,759,062 336,177,701 43.82%
Short position wE - - - - -
Notes: MoaE -

(a) The family interests of 3,000,000 shares and 511,235
underlying shares attached to warrants represent the

interest of the wife of Mr. Li Tung Lok.

(o) Mr. Li Tung Lok wholly owned Solar Forward
Company Limited, which owns 18,590,944 shares and
3,168,118 underlying shares attached to warrants of
the Company.

R B 1 2 2 3,000,0008% f% 15’ 511,23512 iR A&
WEEAM AR NERZEEEZET 2

BX
3

RS E2EHWHE ZSolar Forward
Company Limited$f B 748 2 7] 18,590,944 3% %
19 5.3,168,11817 :R X HE 75 FT M AB BA A& 15 ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (Continued)

(b) Associated corporation

EERAROREERD 2ERE K

KRE (&)

(b)y HMEBEE

Number of issued ordinary shares/

underlying shares of ASAT
UHEYZBRTEER/RBRAHA
Percentage
of the issued
share capital
of ASAT
Personal Family Corporate 1E 8 & X
Name of director interests interests interests Total BRARA
BEpg LB FEER AL £ EH) BAL
Mr. Li Tung Lok TREEE

- Ordinary shares in issue —BRTLER 1,448,010 - - 1,448,010

- Unlisted share options -k EmiERE 2,500,000 = - 2,500,000
Long position e 3,948,010 - - 3,948,010 0.58%
Short position e - - - - -

Save as disclosed herein and for shares in subsidiaries held
by the directors in trust for their immediate holding companies,
at 30th April, 2007, none of the directors or chief executives
of the Company, nor their associates, had any interest or
short position in any securities or derivative of the Company

or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO.

BREXFBEREEREZUEETAREEZER
RAFKAMBRARZEMNI  R_TTLFN
A=1+H  ARRES TBTBRABRESE
ZHEATHREEAARAKEEAEREE
(EERBHFLHEHRM) 2EMESFIITET
AZEMBEIRR -
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SHARE OPTIONS

(a)

(b)

The Company

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are

set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial

statements. During the year, no share option was

granted.

Associated corporation

Pursuant to a stock option exchange program offered

by ASAT in prior years, 2,500,000 new stock options
were granted to Mr. Li Tung Lok on 29th August, 20083,

& A% fE
(a) A2QF

ARBBREFE CHFBIARKREHE
HRME23 - FAMER K EMNEK

f& o

(b)y HEBEHE

BBEERXEFHREL 2 BREIME
2 FRLEER-_ZT=FNA=F
LA %% 2,500,00017 ¥ iR AE - FHIE WA

as follows: Nk
Vesting
period from Number
Vesting of ordinary
Commencement share options
Date (i.e. outstanding at
24th August, 2001) 30th April, 2007
BB FHERA S Subscription R-ZBELE
Date of (=22-F price per mA=1H
Date of grant acceptance Date of expiry NE=+MA) ordinary share W RTHEZ
REEH BGEA EREH EBFcBARTE SREER<IBE SERBREHS
uss$
Ey
29th August, 2003 27th October, 2003 28th August, 2013 1 year 0.288 2,500,000

3 a3

+A=t++A

~23=4/\A= AR

—F-=%

NEZt AR

No options were exercised during the year.

FAMEBREETE -
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the warrants and share options schemes as
described in the sections headed “Directors’ Interests and
Short Position in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share
Options”, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate, and none of the directors or
chief executives, nor their spouses or children under the age
of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the

Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

OF SIGNIFICANCE

(a) In June 2005, QPL Limited and Talent Focus Industries
Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into a Supply Agreement with ASAT Limited
for reducing delivery cycle time by maintaining minimum
inventory level agreed by both parties. For finished
goods produced by QPL Limited pursuant to forecast
provided by ASAT Limited but remained undelivered
for over 3 months, ASAT Limited is liable for paying
66% of sale prices of these undelivered finished goods
to QPL Limited. As agreed with ASAT Limited, the
revenue arising from these undelivered goods is
recognised when the condition meets. During the year,
the turnover with ASAT Limited recognised under this
agreement was approximately HK$2 million. At 30th
April 2007, amount receivable from ASAT Limited under
this agreement amounted to approximately HK$2
million was included in trade receivable due from an

associate.

BEROIESF 2L

BRIBEEHARODRABRO ZEERXR] R
[ 75 B ¥ | P 60 AT st 2 SRR RE N B A A Rt &l
S AR A SRR AR B B 2 R R E AR B
WES2EEIMZH  RARBDEEAEBEALR
REIFEMEMEABRBZE D HESFME
@m MEEF  TBTHRAR REZEBX
18 A T 2 FRRAFR I EGEF HITEEM
ARBARAEFEZIERN -

EERERCHZAE
@ R-TTEFAA W AD 12%%%%
ARAREERAARREELARD
m%mxﬂ&ﬁ@ 1J41ﬁm
NEBERETHEZFEETRATM
AR A BB RY o (B SR X BHE A
RAFRZEMNMRAERAFALE

ﬁéaﬁ%maﬁﬁ@z&muu i 119
BRBEERARARNDEBARRQ A X HZ
FARMERK R Z66%EE o LR UBHE
ERAFREBEZERATERRBELEZ
WABTEKRHERARESER - FR -
HYRYBEERAARELH-ERS

TR 2 & ¥4 52,000,0008 7 A=

TZZLFNA =18 BERBZEK
LRXBHEBERABDZAELY B
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)
(b) The Group entered into an agreement with ASAT and

its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “ASAT group”)
under which ASAT group provides the Group with
management information services and in return, the
Group pays a portion of ASAT group’s costs associated
with its management information system operation
subject to an adjustment according to usage as agreed

between ASAT group and the Group.

Save as aforementioned, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions are disclosed in Note
33 to the consolidated financial statements. The independent
non-executive directors confirm that the transactions have
been entered into by the Company in the ordinary course of
business of the Group, on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable than terms available to or from
independent third parties, and in accordance with the terms
of the agreements governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.

Other than as disclosed above, there were no other
transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing

Rules.

BEEREESHY 2R @)

(o) AEBBELEXREKNEAR (A THE
(SRR B ) RIS a% - RUE - SR
SERAASERAEEEERARSRY
MAREFAFEREXEEAHEELETE
BAERERZBORAN - EATZAE
AR SR S S B R 5 (B 1 P 1R 1E AR

% o
B ES  RERIFERNEMRMER - AQF

SEETAMBERARMEITLARREFTER N
MEREAEAMNaHEMEZRL -
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REXSHFBHRNGA Y HWMRMEIS - B
FRTEFHER  XZINAEEAETXHB
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the

year.

No director was a party to a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without the

payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO CHAPTER
13 OF THE LISTING RULES

At 30th April, 2007, the Group has obtained secured
borrowings of RMB34 million (approximately HK$35 million)
requiring an undertaking from Mr. Li Tung Lok, a director
and a substantial shareholder of the Company, to maintain
no less than 20% of the issued shares of the Company

throughout the loan period. Details are as follows:

Outstanding amount

RAEEEHE

Type
BE

EEEYN

RENLFHERR - WEBLA QT HEAE MM
BRAAZEZHIEMERBOHEH 2 ERRIT
BEBMBIT ZERAH °

EEMBEEARANEERMMBERARETES
RAEE—FAPZNEEE CEERERIN) BIT
BRIEZRBEH -

BELTRAUFI1BERE ZIKE

RZZEZLFMOA=1TH AEEEBARYK
34,000,0007T (#735,000,000/ 7T) 2 A H& #H &
§ RARARFAEFREIERRFRLLEER
EEEEREEL AR BFEARADHTKR
DAL R20% - BEFBAOT :

Revised tenure

CHER

Secured long term loan
EHEARBAER

) RMB14 million
i) A R #14,000,0007C
i) RMB20 million

if) A R #20,000,0007T

4 years ending in August 2007
meE - RZZEZLF)\AEH
1 year ending in January 2008
—F  RZEZTN\F— A EH

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2007



30

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

DELAY IN PUBLICATION OF ANNUAL
RESULTS AND DISPATCH OF ANNUAL
REPORT

In the light of the fact that ASAT, a material associate of the
Company listed on NASDAQ, took more than four months to
finalise and publish its audited financial information for the
financial year ended 30th April, 2007, the Company was
compelled to delay publication of this results announcement
and the dispatch of the Company’s annual report for the
year ended 30th April, 2007, in each case, beyond the 31st
August, 2007 deadline (being the maximum four month period

permitted under the Listing Rules).

The Board approved the Company’s results for the year ended
30th April, 2007 and the annual report at the board meeting
held on 22nd October,
practicable date following publication of ASAT’s audited

2007, which was the earliest

accounts and allowing for due consideration of their impact
on the Company’s results and finalisation of the Company’s
audit.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30th April, 2007, other than the interests disclosed above
in respect of a director, the Company has not been notified
of any other interest representing 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company and recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336 of
the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company’s listed shares and warrants.

EEBRMEFRERTRFR
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of
the Company are decided by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board, having regard to their individual
duties and responsibilities with the Company, remuneration

benchmark in the industry and prevailing market conditions.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial

statements.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of the
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive

directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or under the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata

basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, the
percentage of the Company’s shares which are in the hands
of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of

issued shares throughout the year ended 30th April, 2007 .
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AUDITORS &L Em
A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting RARAFTRREBEFA S LH 2R EERE

of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche £ e FER T €:HAT AR QT 2 B EAD 2 R
Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company. £

On behalf of the Board AEZ2m

Li Tung Lok Z o] 4

Chairman EE

Hong Kong, 22nd October, 2007 BB —EEHE+A-+=H
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GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Company is committed to building and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance practices. The Company
adopted its own Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “QPL Code”) incorporating the principles and code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A copy
of the QPL Code is posted on the Company’s website.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all the code provisions set
out in the CG Code except for the deviations explained in the

relevant paragraphs below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company (the
“Board”) assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Group’s affairs. Responsibilities of the Board include but are
not limited to the formulation of the Group’s strategy and
policies, setting of corporate and management targets and
key operational initiatives, monitoring and control of
operational and financial performance, and approval of major
capital expenditures, major investments, material acquisitions
and disposal of assets, corporate or financial restructuring

and significant operational financial and management matters.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group’s businesses to the executive
management under the supervision of the chief executive
officer. The division of responsibilities between the Board

and the management is set out in the QPL Code.
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Three Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
have also been established to oversee particular aspects of
the Group’s affairs. Details of these three committees are set

out below.

The Company has established a policy enabling Directors to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense. The Board will
provide separate independent professional advice to Directors
to assist the relevant Director or Directors to discharge his/
their duties to the Company as and when requested or

necessary.

Board Composition

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed
from time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced
composition of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the businesses of the Group, and that the
balance between executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors is sufficient to provide adequate checks
for safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and to enable the Board to exercise independent

judgment.

During the year under review and up to the date of this
Annual Report, the Board consists of two executive Directors,
one of whom is the founder of the Group and Chairman of
the Board, and three non-executive Directors, all of whom

are independent non-executive Directors.
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Executive Director and Chairman of the Board
Li Tung Lok

Executive Director
Kwan Kit Tong Kevin

(Chief Executive Officer and Group Financial Controller)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Robert Charles Nicholson

Sze Tsai To Robert

Wong Chun Bong Alex

The Directors have extensive industry knowledge and
experience in corporate management, strategic planning, and
legal, accounting and financial matters. Of the five existing
Directors, one executive Director and two independent non-
executive Directors are qualified accountants. The biographies
of the existing Directors are set out on pages 15 to 18 of this
Annual Report. The information is also available on the

Company’s website.

Throughout the year under review, the Board has complied
with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules in having
at least three independent non-executive directors with at
least one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each existing independent
non-executive Director an annual written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all existing independent non-executive Directors to
be independent on the basis of the independence guidelines

set out in the Listing Rules.
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To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial,
business or family relationship among the members of the

Board or with the chief executive officer.

Appointment, Retirement and Re-election of
Directors

Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. This Code Provision also stipulates that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after their

appointment.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29th
November, 2006 (the “2006 AGM”), all Directors (save the
executive Chairman of the Board who is, by virtue of Bermuda
law, exempted from retirement by rotation) retired from office
in accordance with the then Bye-laws of the Company. In
order to comply with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
Mr. Li Tung Lok, the executive Chairman of the Board, has
agreed to voluntarily retire and be re-elected at least once
every three years. At the 2006 AGM, Mr. Li Tung Lok
voluntarily retired from office and was re-elected as an
executive Director. Mr. Li Tung Lok continues to act as the

Chairman of the Board.
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At the 2006 AGM, a special resolution was passed to amend
the Bye-laws of the Company, inter alia, to require that (i)
half of the Directors (excluding Director(s) holding office as
executive chairman and/or managing director, who is/are, by
virtue of Bermuda law, exempted from retirement by rotation)
shall retire from office at each annual general meeting of the
Company and shall be eligible for re-election; (ii) a Director
may be removed by an ordinary resolution in a general meeting
instead of a special resolution; and (iii) any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the next general meeting of the Company instead of the

next annual general meeting.

The Company currently does not have a Director holding

office as its managing director.

Non-executive Directors
Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that every
non-executive director should be appointed for a specific

term, subject to re-election.

In compliance with this Code Provision, the QPL Code
provides that every non-executive Director should be
appointed for a fixed term of not more than three years,

subject to re-election.
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All non-executive Directors in office during the period from
the beginning of the year under review to the date preceding
the 2006 AGM were not appointed for a specific term but
were subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with
the Bye-laws of the Company. At the 2006 AGM, all non-
executive Directors retired from office in accordance with the
then Bye-laws of the Company and were re-elected for a
fixed term of not more than three years in accordance with
the QPL Code, commencing on the date of the 2006 AGM
and ending on the earlier of (i) the day immediately preceding
the third anniversary of the date of the 2006 AGM; and (ii)
the time of their retirement by rotation pursuant to the Bye-

laws of the Company.

Board Meetings
During the year under review, four Board meetings were held.
The attendance record of each member of the Board is set

out below.

Members of the Board

FIEREEFERERE _TTARRBEFA
e BLMRAERCFATESTHERTEM
H EEARBARRZARMASRKERE
E-R_FTERNFRRBFRE L FABEEH
TEFHURBARAERFZARMARE - X
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AReAHPREAH=ZBFI — BROHBREBEARTF]
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

BEEEgRE HERE SR E
Executive Director and Chairman HITEEREFS

of the Board FE
Li Tung Lok Z= [F] 48 4/4
Executive Director HITEE
Kwan Kit Tong Kevin 7 {4 £ 4/4

(Chief Executive Officer and (TTH AR FE

Group Financial Controller) B 54 E)

Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHHITEE
Robert Charles Nicholson ek 3/4
Sze Tsai To Robert » B 3/4
Wong Chun Bong Alex T & 3B 4/4
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer
positions are separate and each of them plays a distinctive
role in the Company. Throughout the year under review and
up to the date of this Annual Report, Mr. Li Tung Lok is the
Chairman of the Board. Mr. Joseph A. Martin had been the
chief executive officer of the Company until his resignation
on 1st September, 2006, and Mr. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin, an
executive Director, was appointed as the new chief executive
officer on the same day. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive

officer of the Company is set out in the QPL Code.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial,
business or family relationship between the Chairman of the

Board and the chief executive officer of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in April 2000 pursuant
to the then Code of Best Practice of the Listing Rules.

Throughout the year under review and up to the date of this
Annual Report, the Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Sze Tsai
To Robert (being the Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex.
Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex
are qualified accountants with extensive experience in

accounting, audit and financial matters.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent
with those set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee is posted on the Company’s website
and also available from the company secretary of the

Company on request.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

- assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by
providing an independent review and supervision of
the Group’s financial reporting system, and
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system;

- reviewing the Group’s financial information; and

- reviewing the appointment of external auditors to

ensure continuing auditor independence.
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During the year under review, three Audit Committee meetings REIFEEE » HEBET - ABEZZEST S - &
were held. The attendance record of each member of the #*ZE8@&KE ZHE XKLL T ¢
Audit Committee is set out below.
Attendance/

Members of the Audit Committee Number of Meetings
EREBEHE e BRYE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIFNTESE
Sze Tsai To Robert £ EE

(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (BEEZEEXE) 3/3
Robert Charles Nicholson ReE 3/3
Wong Chun Bong Alex F #R F 3/3
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During the year under review, work performed by the Audit REIFEEE @ BXEE €T 2 TIEEHE

Committee included:

- reviewing external auditors’ audit plan in relation to ~ — EHINEZBMBBR _ZEEFEFER
the audit of the annual accounts for 2006; B ZE T2 ZH: ‘I'%J

= reviewing and discussing with the external auditors on ~ — HHERENEZEMAER =TT F
significant audit, accounting and internal control issues FERBZZBIEM F ZBERNE
arising from the external auditors’ audit of the annual CBERAIEEEEEITR

accounts for 2006;

= reviewing the annual accounts for 2006 and making — B _ZTTFFERE  RRELHER
recommendations to the Board for approval; BESKEFSHE

- discussing with the external auditors accounting issues ~ — BINEBZHAMREN T T L F R HE
arising from the review of the interim accounts for 2007; EmMES R MBETR

- reviewing the interim accounts for 2007 and making — EH _ZTTLFPHER  RIELH#EE
recommendations to the Board for approval; and BESKESTeHE K

- selecting and approving the engagement of an external ~ — HERIEMIIZESERSETITR
firm of qualified accountants to review the system of SRS AEESE -

internal control of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23rd
January, 2006. Since its establishment, the Remuneration
Committee has consisted of one executive Director, namely
Mr. Li Tung Lok, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson (being the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Sze Tsai To
Robert and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
consistent with those set out in the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the
Company’s website and also available from the company

secretary of the Company on request.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee

include:

= making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration

of all Directors and senior management; and

- determining and approving the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior

management; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive Directors.

During the year under review, one Remuneration Committee
meeting was held to review the proposed new share option
scheme of the Company and make recommendations to the
Board for approval. The attendance record of each member

of the Remuneration Committee is set out below:
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Members of the Remuneration Committee

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

FHEESRE HERE SB8E
Executive Director and Chairman HITEEREFS

of the Board TE
Li Tung Lok =% A 4 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHITEE
Robert Charles Nicholson ek

(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (¥ Z & & &) 0/1
Sze Tsai To Robert » Bk 1/1
Wong Chun Bong Alex F #R F 1/1

During the year under review, a written resolution of the
Remuneration Committee was passed to set the remuneration
level of Mr. Li Tung Lok, the Chairman of the Board, for the
year ended 30th April, 2007.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 23rd January,
2006. Since its establishment, the Nomination Committee
has consisted of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex (being the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee), Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson
and Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
consistent with those set out in the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the
Company’s website and also available from the company

secretary of the Company on request.
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B MIERABEE (ETRZZBEER) -
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The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee

are:

- identifying individuals suitably qualified to become

Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the candidates

nominated for directorships;

- assessing the independence of independent non-

executive Directors; and

- making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular, the Chairman of the Board and the chief

executive officer.

No meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during
the year under review. Written resolutions of the Nomination
Committee were passed on 1st September, 2006, inter alia,
to recommend the appointment of Mr. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin,
an executive Director, as the new chief executive officer of
the Company to replace Mr. Joseph A. Martin who resigned

on 1st September, 2006.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for dealings in
the securities of the Company by Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that
they have fully complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’

transactions throughout the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group at
the end of the year under review and of results of operation

and cash flows of the Group for the year under review.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year

under review, the Directors have

- selected suitable accounting policies and applied them

on a consistent basis;

- made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair

and reasonable; and

- prepared the consolidated financial statements on
going concern basis and are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to

continue as a going concern.

The statement of the Auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the Auditor’s Report on

pages 48 to 50 of this Annual Report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was reappointed as the Company’s
external auditor at the 2006 AGM until the conclusion of the
next annual general meeting of the Company. During the
year under review, a remuneration of approximately HK$2
million was paid and payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
for the provision of audit services, and approximately HK$0.4
million were paid and payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
for the provision of non-audit related services (including review

of interim report and tax services) to the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL
Code Provision C. 2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
Directors should at least annually conduct a review of the

effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group.

The Board recognises that it has the overall responsibility to
establish and maintain a sound and effective internal control
system to ensure the smooth running of operations, safeguard
the Group’s assets and shareholders interest as well as ensure
the reliability of financial statements in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. In devising internal controls,
the Group has regard to the nature and extent of the risk,
the likelihood of it crystallising, and the cost of controls. A
system of internal control is designed to manage, but not
eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute, assurance

against the risk of material misstatement, fraud or loss.
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Corporate Governance Report

EERERRE

During the year under review, the Group engaged an external
firm of qualified accountants to initiate an independent review
covering the overall financial, operational, compliance, risk
management and monitoring control aspects for a substantial
part of the Group’s operations. A report from the external
firm of qualified accountants was addressed and presented
to the Board, and reviewed by the Audit Committee and the

Board. The report did not reveal any significant defects.

The aforesaid is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating
and managing of significant business, financial, compliance
and operational risks specific to the Group. Relevant
recommendations made by the Audit Committee and the
external qualified accountants who performed the reviews at
least annually would be implemented, if appropriate, as soon
as possible, by the Group to further enhance its internal

control policies, procedures and practices.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 BENR S

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF
QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
QPL International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 51 to 122, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 30th April, 2007, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of recognised income
and expense and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that

are reasonable in the circumstances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBERE

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 BENR S

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at
30th April, 2007 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
22nd October, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mERER

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

2007 2006
—EZLHF —ETREF
NOTES HK$’'M HK$'M
Bt 5 BEER BEAT
Turnover & 6 308 414
Other income H A 8 41 27
Exchange loss, net E X B8 55 2 @)
Changes in inventories of finished goods R o & R @
and work in progress ZIFE# 2) (@)
Raw materials and consumables used 2 A R M K OB #E & (149) (165)
Staff costs BB A (92) (114)
Depreciation of property, plant Y - B REE
and equipment LI E (44) (47)
Impairment loss on property, plant M - BRRE
and equipment ZBEBE (45) -
(Losses) gains arising from changes MTESRIAERATE
in fair value of derivative financial BEELZ
instruments (EB1a) K= (7) 28
Other expenses HiAX (95) (126)
Interest on bank and other loans BARAFANEEEE
wholly repayable within 2 RIT R H A B K
five years Z B (4) (5)
Share of loss of an associate DIEEE R RIEE (11) (33)
Loss before taxation B i A 5 18 (102) (25)
Taxation 18 9 21 -
Loss for the year KNEEFEHE 10 (81) (25)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss per share FhkEE 11
Basic and diluted HEARAKNEEHE (0.11) (0.04)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

At 30th April, 2007 A —ZEZ+FPW A =+H

2007 2006
—EELEF —ETRF
NOTES HK$’'M HK$’'M
B & BEBT BEBT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - R RE 13 162 241
Interest in an associate B 48 N B R 2R 14 - =
Available-for-sale investments AIHEERE 15 - 3
Investment in convertible preferred shares AT MR B EREE
— loan portion — B R E D 16 - =
162 244
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 17 37 48
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b e W IR 18 61 55
Trade receivable due from JiE Wi B 22 R A
an associate 2B 5B 19 21 45
Deposits and prepayments e REMNFKIE 4 9
Available-for-sale investments AIHEERE 15 7 =
Derivative financial instruments MmEEmM T A 16 50 57
Bank balances and cash RITEHRERS 23 9
203 223
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H b fE T 508 20 34 43
Trust receipt loans and ERKEBEERR
bill payables BN EE 21 37 34
Deposits and accrued expenses ZeRETER 36 25
Provision for taxation i I8 £ - 22
Obligations crystallised under guarantees BITEREE 22 - 3
Current portion of borrowings & & = BN H &R 1D 25 45 37
152 164
Net current assets REBEEFE 51 59
213 303
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REEERER

At 30th April, 2007 A - EZE+FM A =+H

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
NOTES HK$’'M HKS$'M
Bt 5 ER- 3w BEBTT
Capital and reserves BEAXRf#E
Share capital fi& < 23 61 61
Share premium and reserves 1% 19 ' (B & & & 24 148 224
Equity attributable to the equity holders & ATEZEFE A
of the parent PE AL R = 209 285
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Long term portion of borrowings BE 2 RBE D 25 - 13
Accrued expenses FEET & A 4
4 18
213 303

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 122

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 22nd October, 2007 and are signed on its behalf TIEERXEFSHE :

by:

Li Tung Lok
2[5 4%
Director

EF

Kwan Kit Tong
% 4t i
Director

EF

HRFESI R I22B 2 R A BREREEETESN =
EELF+A -+ _BHHETRETZ - T H

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2007



54

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE

RERRIK X &R

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETREF
HK$’'M HKS$'M
BEART BEBT
Exchange differences arising on translation 8 /8 SN 3£ 75 fr &2 &£
of foreign operations 2 EH ER 1 =
Gains (losses) on fair value changes AHEERELNTEEZY
of available-for-sale investments Z Wz (E18) 4 (1)
Net income (expenses) recognised BEERKRAER
directly in equity WA (X)) F58 5 (1)
Loss for the year N EE R (81) (25)
Total recognised expense for the year AEEBRILBE (76) (26)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
ll‘/_\éiﬁﬁﬁii

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

2007 2006
—EELHE —EERF
NOTE HK$’'M HK$'M
B & BEEBTT BEBT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES P
Loss before taxation bR %% AT 5 48 (102) (25)
Adjustments for: P
Interest on bank and HARAFAEZEHEER
other loans wholly repayable ZER1T R E A
within five years BERZHE 5
Share of loss of an associate o 1h B & R B B 18 11 33
Depreciation of property, plant Y B RERE
and equipment ZIE 44 47
Impairment loss on property, L TN
plant and equipment Z BB EE 45 -
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEWE - s EE
plant and equipment 2 (W) BE (1) 3
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEME QA KE 2 -
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables FEWE 5 5KIE 2 R 1 1
Losses (gains) arising from changes MEEMITARYE
in fair value of derivative BEEL
financial instruments B8 (fam) 7 (28)
Interest income for convertible AMRELER
preferred shares F 2 WA (11) (5)
Operating cash (outflows) inflows before RerEBESEFHA 2
movements in working capital LER e ORL) A (4) 31
Decrease in inventories 'R 11 4
Increase in trade and other B 5 K H b JE W s IE
receivables 3N (7) (8)
Decrease (increase) in trade receivable FEW & N A2
due from an associate B SRIE R (3Em) 32 24 (76)
Decrease in deposits and prepayments & RIENFKIER D 5 10
(Decrease) increase in trade and 2 5 & H A E T IR
other payables ORLA) 3 9) 26
Increase in bill payables JE A R 12 N 1 5
Increase (decrease) in deposits and e RETER
accrued expenses 2 CR4) 11 (26)
Cash generated from (used in) operations KEE () R 32 (34)
Income tax paid BT ER (1) (1)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING #&# %% F7 18 (Fr%E)
ACTIVITIES RERHA 31 (35)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

MERERER

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

2007 2006
—EELE —EERF
NOTE HK$’'M HKS$'M
Bt 5 BEARL BEABTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E Y% « #E KR E (10) (15)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME MBI RRE
plant and equipment F 15 38 =
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HENBARFERIE 27 2 =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXBHERS
ACTIVITIES R (7) (19)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE
Issue of new shares BATH AR (D - 20
Transaction costs attributable to issue BITHRMDESGZ
of new shares 5K A - (1)
Other loans raised i H 4 B 5K 22 2
Repayment of bank and other loans BERITEREMER (27) (26)
Net increase in trust receipt loans =TI IR B RS hF R 2 12
Payment of obligations crystallised BITEREEZ
under guarantees 5% (3) (6)
Interest paid =EEESS (4) (5)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING B &R B AT
ACTIVITIES BeFE (10) (4)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH RERERHEEEA
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B CRL) FEEE 14 (54)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHARRERER
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR H&£EH 9 63
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND FH&ZHE&RZR
OF YEAR HELIEH
Representing bank balances and cash BIRTTHEBR LR S 23 9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information

section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar, which is the same as the

functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are the
manufacture and sale of integrated circuit leadframes,

heatsinks and stiffeners and investment holding.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, a number of new standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”), which are effective for the Group’s financial
year beginning 1st May, 2006. The adoption of the
new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results
and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been

required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ll"-\élﬂ\jﬁﬁi MT.I-EI

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BEMFHITRLKEITZ2EBYK
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL mEER @)
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
The Group has not early applied the following new AEEWEREFEAUTEREME K
and revised standards, amendment or interpretations ER 2 REIEFTER] ~ (BRI B °
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The AKAREETEH  BRAZEHREIEE]
directors of the Company anticipate that the application R - BRI R ETSHASEEER
of these new and revised standards, amendment or MR ENERATE -

interpretations will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures’ EBEHERE1HE BAEE
CCHEN)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs? BB ERE 2358 B E kA
(B&1EET)
HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: B A 2R SRITE : #FE
disclosures! BT
HKFRS 8 Operating segments? BB S 2R K oy F2
E 8%
HK(IFRIC) - INT 9 Reassessment of embedded BEA (BB BHRE EEHEBARNITAE
derivatives? ZEZE®) TAs
—ZEFER
HK(IFRIC) — INT 10 Interim financial reporting and a5 (BB HRE FHAPERSER
impairment* 2EZEg) BE
—R2EBE10%
HK(IFRIC) — INT 11 HKFRS 2: Group and 58 (BB BEHE BEVBEREE
treasury share transactions® ZREZE®) AIZE25% - £ E
—REFE115% HEFRMHR
%5
HK(IFRIC) — INT 12 Service concession % (BRI HmE REBSTELHES
arrangements® REZET)
—REF125%
HK(IFRIC) — INT 13 Customer loyalty programmes’ A5 (AR BHRE TP ABE
“nEZE9)
—ZEE13%
HK(FRIC) — INT 14 HKAS 19 — The limit on a B (BB HmE BESFTERE
defined benefit asset, REZET) 195% — 5 & A
minimum funding —REE 145 & EN R
requirements and their B mEER
interaction® HEREER
H) A (R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 E &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTlNG STANDARDS (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2007

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2009

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
June, 2006

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
November, 2006

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
March, 2007

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2008

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
July, 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set

out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements included
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and

by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ll"-\élﬂ\jﬁﬁi MT.I-EI

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up
to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, interest in an associate is
carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of net assets of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. An additional share of losses
is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

FESHBE ®)

REREZEE W
FAMBBRLENBRARZEE - T
HKBLEMARERBELEERAH
I (BFBERAME) it AFERER -

MEFRE  AEESHWBRRAZHMB
ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%'@ﬁ AARREANEE
HMK B ARMEBERIT -2 -

ESRERARARARS « & WAR
FXHRERE R B R

BENT R
BERRRREEHEAETEARENM
VHMBEBARMFEEERAREZE

g -

BENRZXEAREERBREINES
RBEZMANEFREMBRE - RIEE
@A NBERA ZEE IR ARE
REERBRPIR  UMAKEAENR
BROGZBERRFEELEEF L
HE - URBEEFME RS ZRES
%o%ﬁil“ﬁi%“”TZ%Eﬁ
REBHERZBERR 2 #n (BB
%Eﬁﬁ%%x’ mzxkHAESEE
BRASERZBERRZIREFEL
—#0) AIAKETBHRERREDE
ZE—TER - AEEEREHEARZ
BEQBABELIRREERS  IKE
XHNRBEZBERT @ AOEZEINER
EHBERERAE -

HASEEBEASE ZBE RRI#ET
X5 ERBaARASEREMEZ
RAEIPZ RS AR -

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2007



o1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated

useful lives, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,

first-out method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated balance sheet when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transactions cost
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted
in respect of each category of financial assets are set

out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are embedded derivatives separated from the

host contract and other derivative financial instruments.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or
other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts, and the host
contracts are not measured at fair value with changes

in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are deemed as financial assets held for trading or
financial liabilities held for trading. Changes in fair
values of such derivatives are recognised directly in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including investment in convertible
preferred shares — loan portion, trade and other
receivables, trade receivable due from an associate
and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses
are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase
in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as other
categories. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in equity is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Any impairment losses on available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not reverse in profit or loss in

subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity

instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
trust receipt loans and bill payables and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using

the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

cost.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.

FESHBE ®)

E@MIAE®

cHERE

CRABELEES REMBEMNRKE =

HEBERRENZEERES  ROS
R 1B IR A BN R 8 RN &

=
E°

KAXTA
ARRAFETZRATREREWRAAERA
BB R BT °

T EER
EREERDRSAREZENERE
FEMEECHERE  RAKEDHER
CREERARZBAED AR NE &K
B ATHERIAZATHEE - — 8
RIERTBEE  BEERAEREK
REKKEBMERRBaT Rz &5t
BRcAMZZBRNIBaPRER -

RERMEBEMS  HWREREANDHRE
ZEBEE  BURSE B - BT g
RzBEzHEaE THEERZ2HEE
ZEEERESNRERZRKEZZRK
KRBz HER -

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2007



6/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as
an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the

lease term on a straight-line basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related

taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed with reference to the

sales contracts/shipping terms.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimate future cash
receipts throughout the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset’s net carrying value.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been

established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HE —ZZLFMA =+ HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of transaction. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet

date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date
and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised as a separate component of equity
(the translation reserve). Such exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

the foreign operation is disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered services

entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted before 7th November, 2002

The financial impact of share options is not recorded
in the Company’s balance sheet until such time as the
options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in
the consolidated income statement in respect of the
value of options granted in the year. Upon the exercise
of the share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded by the Company as additional share capital
at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of
the shares is recorded by the Company as share
premium. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior
to their exercise date are deleted from the register of

outstanding options.

Share options granted after 7th November, 2002 and
vested after 1st May, 2005

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is expensed on a straight line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase

in equity (share option reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share options granted after 7th November, 2002 and
vested after 1st May, 2005 (Continued)

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.
At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred

to retained profits.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by

the balance sheet date.
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be

recovered.
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or
credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Borrowings costs
All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
finance costs in the consolidated income statement in

the period in which they are incurred.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In preparing these consolidated financial statements,
management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of
accounting principles, including making estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities are discussed below.

Impairment of available-for-sale
investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in
determining whether an available-for-sale investment
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgements. In making these judgements, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of an investment is less than its
cost, and the financial health of and near-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, change in technology

and operation and financing cash flow.
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Determining whether property, plant and equipment
are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which property, plant
and equipment have been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. At 30th April, 2007, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment is HK$162 million.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are

disclosed in Note 13.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature,
and are made as of a specific point in time based on
the characteristic of the financial instruments and
relevant market information. Where available, quoted
market prices are used. If a quoted price is not
available on a recognised stock exchange or from a
broker or dealer for derivative financial instruments or
from a readily available latest trading price, the fair
value is estimated using present value or other valuation

techniques.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

These techniques involve uncertainties and are
significantly affected by the assumptions used and
judgements made regarding risk characteristic of
various financial instruments, discount rate and other
factors. Change in assumptions could significantly
affect these estimates and the resulting fair value.
Derived fair value estimates cannot necessarily be
substantiated by comparison to independent markets
and, in many cases, could be realised in an estimate

sale of financial instruments.

In particular, for valuation of the derivative financial
instruments carried out by the independent international
assets valuers, as described in Note 16, they are
appraised on the fair value basis with the core inputs
on expected life of the financial instrument, estimated
discount rate, expected volatility on both share price
and trading volume of ASAT Holdings Limited (“ASAT"),
interest rate prevailing in the market and on the basis
that ASAT would continue as a going concern. The
expected life of the derivative financial instruments is
assumed to be 4 years. The expected yield rate applies
to the derivative financial instruments at initial
recognition, which is assumed to be 36%, has made
reference to the yield of bond with similar grading and
the borrowing rate that ASAT may experience. The
volatility of the share price of ASAT is calculated based
on the average of its share price movement over last
six years and possible cyclical pattern that demonstrate
in the corresponding industry. The prevailing market
interest rate has made reference to the yield of US

government bond with similar duration.

AT THBRZZEERER @
EMIAEZAFEE)

ZERME R AARRE YEAMT
AmERzBRIEHZHR(BETR
ERMTAZEREE  FMEREME
RRE NEBRRUVENMMTEZFML
BLRAMEHZRATE TEZRFEMR
B VAL BB LTS MHEL
AN ERZERT > AARERTAZ
HEFsHEER -

FRSBBERREEREMET T
AEMIAZHEEMS - AWM F16RT
i DUAFEERGE EP2i
DENBEHeR I AZERARE -
flEr 2 #r = + ASAT Holdings Limited
(M) RERRFEZBEIKE
T35 2 B AT R DA R E R AR AT IR 4
BEECE - fTHEeRMIAZEHAX
HERERERBNEF - REVERKEHER
ROTESRI TR 2 ZE S RBRAI6K - &
REL2ERETRZEFKE - AR
BXAEEBIZEEE - LERE
ZREBDREBEEBERNRFEZ FHRES
B RRBERETEER Z2AREBHER
SE - mSRAMEXAE2ZEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 E &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, investment in convertible
preferred shares, trade and other receivables, trade
receivable due from an associate, derivative financial
instruments, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, trust receipt loans and bill payables and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates mainly in both the People’s
Republic of China (“the PRC”) and Hong Kong.
The Group has minimal currency exposure as
the majority of sales receipts are denominated
in United States dollar while payments are mainly
made in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi, which
are the functional currencies of the relevant
subsidiaries. The Group manages its foreign
currency risks by performing regular reviews and

monitoring its foreign exchange exposure.

5.

e SRR MR

“ETAFENA=THILFERE

MBEREEBERERBE

AEBZEIESRM T ABEIHEER
B AR EBEKRIKRE %&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ’?
WHRIE - BB ERRIZESHRIE - T4
EHMIAE  RITEREES E%&ﬁ
N FHIE - ERBBERKENRE
MEE - HESHMTAZHBERNAEH
st ER - TXHINENESHTAE
B 2 2 B )SUZDT—JIZHKEZ:HKZBZ
EREEETREREZEZERAR  ABERK
IR A8 2 5K BUE MZ%M°

™35 & b
iy IIERE
AEBEFERFPE Aﬁﬁﬂﬁ
(MhE]) REBZE - BRI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n'l_\éﬁl\zri%ﬁ% ng}

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk in
relation to the Group’s investment in equity
instruments. The management manages this

exposure by reviewing the investments regularly.

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to fixed-rate bank and other loan
borrowings. In relation to these fixed-rate bank
and other loan borrowings, the management will
consider hedging significant fair value interest

rate risk should the need arise.

Cash flow interest rate risk

Interest rate risk reflects the risk the Group might
expose through the impact of rate changes on
interest-bearing financial assets and financial
liabilities. Interest-bearing financial assets are
mainly balance with banks which are short term
in nature. Interest-bearing financial liabilities are
mainly trust receipt loans which are arranged at
floating rate. It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to

minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

5.

BEEREEREREE @

™ 45 B By ()
(i)  HAbEERR

(iii)

(iv)

AREBARIAEBZBRATA
REZBRERR - BEEETH®
BZERE  HEUEBZAR -

DNFEFNRER
AEEz R FEMNERREREZHE
BEEMNE Z2RITREMERSR
e L EHEEMNRZRITR
HtiEEms  EREERNEAR
EREEHIERNZ A FEME
Rk o

BEREFNERERE

) 2R B S AR K 5k (8] A] BE A B R
EPHMECREERERAR
ZHEMEHNER - MR
BETERERT AN BE
HME MESRABEIERE
FRBIEER  DREEBRHE - K
SERRDERBERZHNE
R A A FEMN X Z &R

E&E -

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2007



/7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by closely
monitoring its current and expected liquidity
requirements regularly and ensuring sufficient cash,
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from reputable financial institutions to meet
the Group’s liquidity requirements in the short and

long term.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations as at 30th April, 2007 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying value
of those assets as stated in the consolidated balance

sheet.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. The amounts of trade receivables
presented in the consolidated balance sheet are net
of allowances for doubtful receivables. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
is responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures are carried
out to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade and other
debt at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable

amounts.

5.

R EEEEREE ®

REE & R b
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n'l_\éﬁl\zri%ﬁ% ng}

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.

However, the Group is exposed to concentration of
credit risk on its trade receivables. As at 30th April,
2007, approximately 27% (2006: 45%) of trade

receivables is due from the associate.

TURNOVER
Turnover represents the amounts received and
receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside

customers less sales returns and discounts.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Geographical segments

The customers of the Group are currently located in
the United States of America, Hong Kong, Europe,
Greater China (comprising the PRC (other than Hong
Kong) and Taiwan), Malaysia, Singapore and other
Asian countries. The geographical locations of the
Group’s customers are the basis on which the Group

reports its primary segmental information.

BEEREEREREE @

FERR (&
HRXZHE T REEEFR BT &
RBESZEERREREAR -

Al AEBIEHEEHERKFKIEZ
FEETER R-_ZETLFEA=+
BZREEBZHRBET  H21%(ZFF
N 45%) REWEEE N B Z A -
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EEEEAEEFENANAESHER
2 B B M SROE 3 B 3 SR ) R 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 E &

e SRR MR

“ETAFENA=THILFERE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 7. D ZBEFR &)
Geographical segments (Continued) WED W (E)
Year ended 30th April, 2007 HE_ZTT+H-FWA=THIEFE
United Other
States of Greater Asian
America  Hong Kong Europe China  Malaysia Singapore countries Consolidated
-0
%8 B BN APE#E FRAE fmg  EHER &4
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERr BE®Rx BE#n  BE#n  AE#n  AEAn AEEn AEAR
TURNOVER gxE
Segment turnover AHESE 37 107 2 50 47 2% 40 308
RESULT S
Segment result R 4 2 - 8 4 1 3 17
Depreciation of property, plant nx BERZE
and equipment LIE (44)
Impairment loss on property, plant ER: S ET
and equipment LREER (45)
Losses arising from changes in fair value fTEEBRIAATHE
of derivative financial instruments FREL BR (1)
Interest income for convertiole THREL R
preferred shares FIEHA 11
Gain on disposal of property, plant HENE  BERRR
and equipment ¢ 1
Gain on disposal of a subsidlary HE-WEAF K% 2
Unallocated sundry income AAEEERA 2
Unallocated corporate expenses AAELERX (24)
Interest on bank and other loans ARAENEHEE 2RI
wholly repayable within five years RERERZFIE (4)
Share of loss of an associate AEBERAER (1)
Loss before taxation RANEE (102)
Taxation b 21
Loss for the year AEEER (81)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

7.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION cContinued) 7. 2O EBE R (8
Geographical segments (Continued) &2 &P ()
Consolidated balance sheet at 30th April, 2007 R-ZEZLFNA=1TH EEEER
(B
United Other
States of Greater Asian
America Hong Kong Europe China  Malaysia  Singapore countries Consolidated
A
%8 E# Bl AHEHE ERAR fng EHER &8
HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M
BE%n FEBn HEMn EE®n  EHEBn  BEBn FEERn HEERn
ASSETS g
Segment assets PHEE 7 3 - 2 9 3 8 81
Property, plant and equipment nx - BERRE 162
Inventories 3] 37
Bank balances and cash ROEBRERS 23
Other unallocated assets ERAREE 62
Consolidated total assets GRAELE 365
LIABILITIES &
Unallocated liabilities AAEBE 156
Consolidated total liabilies FARBELE 156

In view of segment information is disclosed based on

the geographical locations of the Group’s customers,

capital addition of HK$10 million for the year ended
30th April, 2007 is unallocated.

HROBERTIERANEERF T
mMEE H#E_TTLtFMWA=+HL
#FZ 210,000,000 L ERAREBR KD
fii ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical segments (Continued)
Year ended 30th April, 2006

7. DEER @
#8558

BE-TTAEMA=TALEE

United Other
States of Greater Asian
America Hong Kong Europe China  Malaysia ~Singapore countries Consolidated
R
EY| B Bl ATEHE EREE iy ENER G4
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERn EBERAn BEAn BEAn  AEAn AR AEBT EEAR
TURNOVER gXE
Segment turnover AWELE 37 200 2 69 34 30 4 414
RESULT ES
Segment result R 6 27 - 10 6 5 7 61
Depreciation of property, plant and nx - BERRE
equipment LNE (47)
Gains arising from changes in fair value ESRIAATEE
of derivative financial instruments EEWE 28
Interest income for convertiole THREL R
preferred shares FIEHA §
Loss on disposal of property, plant LWENE  HERZE
and equipment LEE @)
Unallocated corporate expenses APELERR (31)
Interest on bank and other loans wholly ERRER2ABELBOR
repayable within five years EfER A (6)
Share of loss of an associate MiBERRER (33)
Loss before taxation RANEE (29)
Taxation it -
Loss for the year FEEER (29)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 7. &R (&)
Geographical segments (Continued) &5 B (&)
Consolidated balance sheet at 30th April, 2006 R NFNA=THZHGZAEER
EE.
United Other
States of Greater Asian
America Hong Kong Europe China  Malaysia  Singapore countries Consolidated
A
%8 R Bl APERE EREX #mg EHER &8
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BE#AT FBEBnT EEBn BEAn BEEn  EEBn BEER  BEER
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PHEE 5 53 1 2 6 3 12 100
Property, plant and equipment nx - BERRE 241
Inventories 3] 48
Bank balances and cash ROEBRERS 9
Qther unallocated assets ERAREE 69
Consolidated total assets GREELE 467
LIABILITIES af
Unallocated liabilities AAEAE 182
Consolidated total liabilties FRBELE 182

In view of segment information is disclosed based on

the geographical locations of the Group’s customers,

capital addition of HK$15 million for the year ended
30th April, 2006 is unallocated.

HRADHERNERAEB TS &
MEE H#E-_ZTTFMA=+HI
F[Z 215,000,000 L ERARBEBIR KD
fii o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical segments (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of

segment assets and additions to property, plant and

equipment, analysed by geographical area in which

the assets are located:

TEHER (&)
it & 2 &P (&)
REEMEHES D 2D B EERAE
HREYWE  RERREZAWMT :

Carrying amount

of segment assets

Additions to property,

plant and equipment

PEEEREE WEYE - MBERRE

2007 2006 2007 2006

—EELE —EERF —EELE —EETREF

HK$’'M HK$'M HK$’'M HK$’'M

BE®ETT ER=-Yow BEEEBRT BEBBT
United States of America = 1 2 - -
Hong Kong BB 84 107 - =
Greater China A A EE @ 199 289 10 15
284 398 10 15

Business segment E )i

The Group operates solely the manufacture and sale

of integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks and

stiffeners.

AEEELEHNENHERKER S|
£ MERERNERZER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

8. OTHER INCOME H b It A

2007 2006
—EELF —ETRE
HK$’'M HKS$'M
BEAET BEATT

Gain on disposal of a HE—WBARZ
subsidiary (Note 27) Yoz (Bt FE27) 2 -

Gain on disposal of property, HEYE - #HER
plant and equipment HfE 2 W 1 -

Interest income for convertible R ELER

preferred shares (Note) A EUWA (KFFE) 11 5
Scrap sales FERLSH & 25 21
Sundry income LSRN 2 1
41 27

Note: The amount includes approximately HK$7 million

(2006: HK$3 million) interest income from convertible

preferred shares, which was received in form of

ordinary shares of ASAT.

Mzt : WEEeEURRELRZA KA
#)7,000,0008 T (Z EZE X F :
3,000,000/ 7T) * I LAZEfK 3L 2 3B

B =0 IR
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

TAXATION BiiE
2007 2006
S A
HK$’M HK$'M
BEEAT BEBIT
The credit (charge) comprises: MIEHE R () 81 :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RS (1) (1)
Overprovision of other NEFEHEMBAERZ
jurisdiction in prior years BEE R 22 -
Deferred tax (Note 26) i FE I8 (B 7E26) - 1
21 -

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the individual companies comprising the Group have
no estimated assessable profits derived from Hong

Kong for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at

the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The overprovision amounting to HK$22 million
represented a reversal of provision of income tax on a
gain arising from reorganisation of the Group in 1999,
calculated based on the prevailing tax rate at the
jurisdiction. During the year, the directors have made
a reassessment of the income tax liability in light of
the 6-year statute of limitation rule under the jurisdiction
and are of the opinion that it is more likely than not
that said tax liability will be settled and accordingly,

the amount of income tax provided was reversed.

R A B 2 8 R A R R W A E S
REBELEMTERT G - BILE
BENGHELERE -

REMREREELE ZRBZEMANE
RERER ZHEFH -

#38122,000,000/8 TL 2 HBER B R IE A K E
R—NANANFETEAMEERE 2P
GERBHE BE  DREREERZR
THEFE - FR - EFEREBZAA
R NEFRBRAUZEZASENRTAEM

BHRaE -

MG AE
B e

REBRNAARENEBE LM
AR EREZAERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JIV_\éﬂjﬁiﬁi ng}

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

9. TAXATION (Continued) 9. ®IE W
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss REEHIEERLE S WK 2 BB AT
before taxation per consolidated income statement as EEZHENT
follows:
2007 2006
—EELHF —EER
HK$’'M HKS$'M
BEET BEBT

Loss before taxation B AT E 1R (102) (25)
Tax credit at Hong Kong Profits BREBNSHRNE17.5%

Tax rate of 17.5% (ZFZNEF : 17.5%)

(2006: 17.5%) AEZHERR 18 4
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A] F1Fi B X 2

for tax purpose T 5 & (9) (1)
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBWAZ

for tax purpose mMBEE 2 4
Tax effect of non-allowable losses of B E £ 2 A MFEE 2

offshore operation 75 = 2 (2) (1)
Effect of different tax rates of RPBEEZHERF

subsidiaries operating in PRC TRABER 2B (1) (1)
Tax effect of reversal of tax losses BEERNERTEEE 2

previously recognised M2 - (1)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KERMIEEIE 2 MIET 2 (7) =
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses ~ BA L AT R ERH B EIE 2

previously not recognised M E - 1
Overprovision in prior years NEFERERE 22 =
Effect of share of tax of an associate D {hEf & AR FHAZ & (2) (5)
Tax credit for the year REFHIBEER R 21 =
Details of deferred taxation provided/not provided for EHFEANCEE TEREZETCHE
in the year are set out in Note 26. IBE A 526 -
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. XEEBA
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETREF
HK$’'M HKS$'M
BEEAT BEABT
Loss for the year has been arrived REEBEEHAR
at after charging: TA&IE
Allowance for doubtful B E S HRIEZ
trade receivables RIRE A 1
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR B <& 2 2
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - HERk
plant and equipment R BE - 3
Operating lease rentals in BFZEERD
respect of premises e 13 13
LOSS PER SHARE 11. BRESE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable B AT @miEEa AELERENEE
to the ordinary equity holders of the parent is based Ty ol gt & .
on the following data:
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
Loss for the purposes of BAUstESRER
basic loss per share E 82 E B HK$81 MEEBTT HK$25 MEEE T
Weighted average number AUt ESRER
of ordinary shares for the purpose EEzERR
of calculating basic loss per share D0 #E - 5 8% 767,244,211 680,359,931

No diluted loss per share has been presented for both

years because assuming the exercise of the share

options and warrants of the Company would result in

a decrease in loss per share.

R RERITEARNR A 2 08 B & of i i
EREHERERRD AL EZ7
MEFEZSREFESE -

=)

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2007



88

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JIV_\éﬂjﬁiﬁ% M;J-EI

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

12.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEMS
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments EEMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five ENERAB(Z2EZERNF : "B E
(2006: six) directors were as follows: ExBaZMemT
Robert
Henry Kevin Robert Charles Alex
TLLi  HT Cheng KT Kwan TT Sze  Nicholson CB Wong Total
EI5E F ] BAE LER REE IRD ay
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HEBT HEBT HEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT
2007 —EEtE
Fees ik 19.2 - - 0.5 0.4 0.3 20.4
Other emoluments Hi &
Salaries and other benefits T RAMET - - 1.5 - - - 15
19.2 - 15 0.5 0.4 0.3 21.9
2006 ZZERE
Fees e - - - 0.5 0.4 0.3 1.2
Other emoluments Hitfi &
Salaries and other benefits HekHEtEH 9.3 0.9 0.5 - - - 10.7
Discretionary bonus HEEL 10.0 - - - - - 10.0
19.3 0.9 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 21.9

The emoluments payable to directors of the Company
as approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the remuneration committee, are having regard to their
individual duties and responsibilities with the Company,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing

market conditions.

In both years, no emoluments were paid or payable to
the directors as an inducement to join the Company
and no compensation was paid or payable to directors

or past directors for loss of office.

BNARBEZTZMEI2EHMEE
SZHBERERRBERERARRZHE
ABE  TEFHEERERMAME
EEHE -

RMEFER  NEEYEETAENK
BN TEEZMEERMALRRR ZH
B TEENKENTEEHAMESTZ
REBFHE -
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEME @
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Employees’ emoluments BEEM2
The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid hEmEaTMATEERE (ZTEER
individuals included two (2006: two) executive directors F:MB)ARANTES - HMESE T
of the Company, whose emoluments are included in REX  E#p=%(ZFTZTF: =8)
above. The aggregate emoluments of the remaining EagMAT M ESAELT
three (2006: three) highest paid individuals are as
follows:
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$’M HK$'M
BEEBABT BEBT
Basic salaries, allowances EXFH &  FEHR
and other benefits-in-kind HihE YA &= 4 5
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HEMe N T THHER :
2007 2006
—EELHE ZTTRF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH" BB A%
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7t — 1,500,000/ 7T 3 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T - 1
3 ©
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. #% - #3E K& HE

Furniture, Moulds,
fixtures toolings and
Leasehold and Motor  Plantand  production
improvements  equipment  vehicles machinery films Total
B RE IE-I4R
NEEE SET ] RE BERRE ZLERER ay
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBEn FEEBT HEER BEB:R BEBER BEER
COST KA
At 1st May, 2005 RZZETn50A-H 70 173 8 709 352 1,312
Additions NE 2 1 1 6 5 15
Disposals and write-offs HE R - (7) (6) (66) ) (73)
At 30th April, 2006 RZZEZ E0NA=TH 72 167 g 659 353 1,254
Additions NE - 1 - 3 6 10
Disposals and write-offs HE R - = = = () ()
At 30th April, 2007 RZEZ+&WNA=TH 72 168 3 662 354 1,259
ACCUMULATED RAHER
DEPRECIATION AND HEFS
IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1st May, 2005 R-EERFRA—H 46 159 7 497 327 1,036
Provided for the year rEERE 4 4 1 32 6 47
Eliminated on disposals & LA
and write-offs i = (7 (6) (63) @ (70)
At 80th April, 2006 RZEEREMA=TH 50 156 2 476 329 1,013
Provided for the year REEEE 5 5 - 28 6 44
Impairment loss FEER - = - 44 4 45
Eliminated on disposals i E R
and write-offs s - - = = () ()
At 30th April, 2007 RZEZ+&#WNA=TH 55 161 2 545 334 1,097
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30th April, 2007 R-ZZtEMA=1H 17 7 1 117 20 162
At 30th April, 2006 RZZEZXENA=1H 22 11 1 183 24 241
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following

rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 - 8 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Plant and machinery 6 — 12 years
Moulds, toolings and production films 6 years

During the year, the directors conducted a review of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
determined that a number of those assets were
impaired. Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$45
million have been recognised in respect of plant and
machinery and moulds, tooling and production films.
The recoverable amounts of the relevant assets have
been determined on the basis of their value in use.
The discount rate in measuring the amounts of value
in use was 16% in relation to plant and machinery and

moulds, toolings and production films.

13.

M- BERRE @

Hilix  #EBERKBZEBDNAER
B EEFE  RAZEXRMT :

WEREE 8%
B KERRE 5ZE8F
E 5%
s MR 6E 124
TR -TAREERER 65

FRN - EFHAEE2ME  BBERR
WETRN  BEEEFETEELRR
BBl ERMERREEER T
AREERERBRREESIB
45,000,000 7T - B EE 2 IO & 5
DERZEEENEREBEMERE ° 5
ERERZERER TAREAEAKR
FrZERBESEMERANMEREA
16% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

14.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

14. BERNAIED

2007 2006
—EELHE —ETREF
HK$’M HK$'M
BEEBBT BEBT
Listed investment BRI Z
outside Hong Kong EmkE
Cost of investment (Note 8) TEKA (FF7E8) 11 4
Share of post-acquisition losses DK ER 2
and reserves ek EE (11) (4)
Fair value of listed investment EmEREZRAFE 176 422

Interest in an associate represents the Group’s 42.48%

(2006: 42.42%) interest in the issued ordinary share

capital of ASAT, a limited company incorporated in

the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the
NASDAQ. ASAT and its subsidiaries are principally

engaged in the provision of assembly and testing of

integrated circuits.

e N REREAESEMERFAEES
FAMA T2 ERARLEERXEBEITEBR
BRAR AR 2 42.48% (Z T T/NF 1 42.42%)
B ERXZBRHEEZRAEIHFE
BERERE XH (NASDAQ) £ - %
BXREMBARIEEZRMHERERE
g RO AR o
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
On 8th December, 2006, ASAT announced an intention
to change its American Depository Shares (“ADS”) ratio
from 5 ordinary shares per 1 ADS (the “Old ADS ratio”)
to 15 ordinary shares per 1 ADS (the “New ADS ratio”),
representing the equivalent of a 1-for-3 reverse split.
The New ADS ratio took effect at the close of business
on 22nd December, 2006 and was in place at
beginning of the next business day on 26th December,

2006.

On 15th August, 2007, ASAT received a letter from
the NASDAQ Staff stating that its market value of listed
securities has been below US$35 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$273 million) as required for
continued inclusion by Marketplace Rule 4320(e)(2)(B)
(the “Rule”), Therefore, in accordance with Marketplace
Rule 4320(¢e)(2)(D), ASAT will be provided 30 calendar
days, or until 14th September, 2007, to regain
compliance. If compliance with this Rule cannot be
demonstrated by 14th September, 2007, Staff will
provide written notification that ASAT’s securities will

be delisted.

On 21st September, 2007, ASAT announced that it
appealed to NASDAQ against the delisting and in the
meantime the ADS remained listed and traded on the
NASDAQ Capital Market, pending the results of the
hearing of the appeal. In the opinion of the directors
of ASAT, the appeal is expected to be heard within 45
days and even if unsuccessful, it expects trading in its
securities to continue on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin

Board market.

14.

BeEQE R @
R-FEANFT-ANA  £ERXEM
AFEREAEEARES ((ERES))

W
Gy
8
”vf}

S ERIEFERE FR KRR EBK
((BEERAEFLX])BELRERELER
H MR K15 Hxiﬁﬂx(f?ﬁfﬁ_% %tk
K])  HERIRILL3Z Al 1T R AR
Mo - MIETLE %J:IZTEE"_??/\
FT-_ A+ HEXRREAERFEE
Mo YR TELEEBN_TTF+=
AZ+"BRBBLEETRS -

3

RZTZTLFNATAB @ SR CEE
NASDAQHR 8 7 1t - BERE FH&E 52
™ {& & 7 35,000,000% 7t (B & R 4
273,000,000/ 7T) - EINASDAQTH % #i &
584320(e)(2)(B)f&k ([#R7E 1) P 22 sk #5548 4
A5 2 TRAFE - Bt - RIBETIH R
TE % 4320(e)(2)(D) & - G4k & E R 301E
BEEXZE-_ZTTLtFNA+HBL ' I
BERAREZER MR ZTZLF
NATHBIMAEERAFTEZEATE B
BERBHEDAN  BLEAXEFFRK
hE o

RZZEZLFRAZ+—B  #EKX
#E MINASDAQIR HH L5F » REEEFH
BRig - mMRRARHE - HBEEEHDEE
NASDAQEART% FM R EE « AF L&k
RAZHER - BEXEERR - £F
RMFBEAS S RA5KNETT - MBIE £
FAKD)  BHEESFSEETERS
INZGHEBREE -

u]

Iﬂﬂ> ‘En‘)‘si >4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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WIN

& MR M

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

14.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The following details have been extracted from the
unaudited consolidated management accounts of ASAT

14, Hie

NEER (B
LTEAND S E xR EEEe:
MASEGrESNBRELENES Y

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the AEEZIZEEERE
HKICPA:
2007 2006
—EELEF —EEREF
HK$’'M HK$'M
BHEBT BEBTT
Financial position B 7 R R
Non-current assets ERBEE 669 786
Current assets mENEE 346 565
Current liabilities mEAE (442) (538)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (1,380) (1,359)
Net liabilities FHRE (807) (546)
Group’s share of net liabilities AREE DG E AT
of the associate FEE - -
Results for the year REEFEE
Turnover B 1,289 1,412
Loss for the year REEFEEHE (283) (438)
Group’s share of result of the REBOIERFEEHZ
associate for the year NG (11) (33)
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share REBEETEBREMOEERXZE

of losses of ASAT. The unrecognised share of losses
for the year amounted to HK$109 million (2006:

HK$153 million) and the accumulated unrecognised

B e LKEJ**%EEW
109,000,000/8 7t ( = =
153,000,000/8 70) & 25T &K 7 i#R

DIEERS

%/_\i

share of losses amounted to HK$340 million (2006:
HK$231 million).

1 B3 #8 /% 340,000,000 70 (= & 2 7N
£ : 231,000,000/ 7T) °
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 15. At &K E
2007 2006
—EELE —ETREF
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEBT ABEBIT
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, &8 EWRAZES -
at fair value EAFE 7 3
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERENDTA :
Current assets mEEE 7 -
Non-current assets IEREBEE - 3
7 3
As at the balance sheet date, the available-for-sale REER  AIREEREZAFET
investments are stated at fair value, which have been iR W2EERMEAHEABME
determined based on bid prices quoted in active JE °

markets.

Particulars of the investee company are as follows:

B RRZFBWT :

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital

Place of Class of held by the Group
Name of company incorporation Principal activities shares held rEBFRFEEZ
NGRS & 7 BX 3L tth B TEXK FEERGZERN CERTREAEELH
Wafer Systems Limited Cayman lIslands Provision of network  Ordinary shares 12%

(“Wafer”)

BEEGERDA
(TR )

HERS

infrastructure
solutions and
services
RUEHEER
YT

Wafer is a company listed on the Growth Enterprise

Market of the Stock Exchange.

BERBBRXAAIRERZ EMRF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

16.

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE 16.
PREFERRED SHARES/DERIVATIVE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

TRREERRE TEEH
THA

2007 2006

—gTtE  —TTAA

HK$’'M HKS$'M

BEBAT BEET
Investment in convertible AT MR B ERIEE —

preferred shares — loan portion B E D 34 30
Less: Loss allocated in excess o BE SR RE N

of cost of investment HRER AR (34) (30)

Derivative financial instruments: EE/mITA :

Investment in convertible preferred AT MR EBEREE —

shares — conversion option IR i = 45 49

Investment in warrants RIREBHRE 5 8

50 57
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE
PREFERRED SHARES/DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
On 31st July, 2005, the Company entered into a
securities purchase agreement with Asia Opportunity
Fund, L.P. and its affiliate funds (“AOF”), which held
approximately 28.9% of the issued ordinary shares of
ASAT, and ASAT in relation to a US$15 million financing
(equivalent to approximately HK$117 million) for ASAT,
of which the Group contributed US$7.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$58 million). ASAT
issued 300,000 convertible preferred shares for a total
price of US$15 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$117 million), representing an issue price of US$50
per convertible preferred share, to be purchased by
AOF and the Group in equal proportions. On 27th
October, 2005 (“Closing Date”), the preferred share
financing was completed and the Group invested
US$7.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$58
million) for 150,000 convertible preferred shares for
the equivalent amount at an issue price of US$50 per
convertible preferred share at a preferred dividend rate
of 13% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.
Each convertible preferred share will, at any time and
from time to time, be convertible, at the option of the
holder, into ordinary shares of ASAT at a conversion
price equal to US$0.09 per ordinary share (equivalent
to US$0.45 per ADS at Old ADS ratio), subject to
customary adjustment for share splits, dividends, re-
combinations and similar transactions. The convertible
preferred shares would also be subject to a potential
‘reset’ of the conversion price on 31st October, 2006
to 80% of the average trading price of ADSs during
the preceding three months, subject to a floor of
US$0.065 per ordinary share (equivalent to US$0.325
per ADS at Old ADS ratio).

16.

AHRREERRE TELRE
T A )

R-_TETHRELA=+—H AQFH
Asia Opportunity Fund, L.P. 5 H B B &
® ([AOF] » HALKXEEITEERLD
28.9%) R E R X AREKEE
15,000,000 7T (18 & 1 %9117,000,000/8
7t) (A AREEHE & 7,500,000% 7T (18
B 7 #958,000,000/8 L) ) sl L B4 B B
ek o BEAKCEEITH(E M /15,000,000
T (& ® 4 117,000,000/ 7t ) Z
300,000 AT g B 5L ik (AN T B A E
P& A #a % 1B SE IR 50 L) © HAOF R AR &
BLERELOEE BLIRMEN=T
THFETA=-tEtB([EXBH]) =
K MASEERRZETESRITARE
% B 503 7T £ & 7,500,000 7T (& R
#758,000,0007% 7T ) B A 150,000 A] ¥
IRB R - BAERKREETF13%  FHF
BT o B IR AT IR AR B 5T AR AT BE B R TR
BIEE AERRRRETREMAR0.093%
T RERAEAF L ERERERELE
$H0.45% L) BRAR KX 2 EEKR - M
ZEEARBKOITA  KRE - EFAH
RABEXGELHETRAE - AT #RRE
ERZBBREAIR=_ZTETF+A=T
—ARBEEFRCI ABRENZAR
AU E=EABRESFZ FHRREZ
80% * HFE TR /TR EL MAX0.065%
TTREBAESFLEEERSRETE
#0.325%7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

16.

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE
PREFERRED SHARES/DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

In November 2006, ASAT announced that the
conversion price of its convertible preferred shares had
been reset from US$0.45 per ADS to US$0.325 per
ADS at Old ADS ratio on 31st October, 2006 in

accordance with its Restated Articles of Association.

At any time on or after 4th May, 2011, ASAT shall, at
the option of the Group, redeem, in whole or in part,
any outstanding convertible preferred shares, in cash.
The put option embedded in the convertible preferred
shares is not separated at the grant date since the
strike price of the put option is equal to the convertible
preferred shares after separating the embedded
conversion option as at the exercise date. Subject to
the terms of an indenture of ASAT dated 26th January,
2004 in relation to its 9.25 per cent. high yield note,
the convertible preferred shares shall be redeemable,
in cash, at the option of ASAT, in whole or in part, at
any time at a price per share equal to the higher of (i)
the issue price, plus an amount equal to the accrued
and unpaid preferred shares dividends to the date of
redemption; and (ii) the aggregate fair market value of
ASAT’s ordinary shares into the which the convertible
preferred shares are convertible. The borrowing cost
applicable to ASAT was estimated at 36% per annum
which implies the call option is deeply out of money.
In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the call
option was immaterial at initial recognition and each

subsequent balance sheet date.

16.

ARREERIKRE TELR
T A @

RZBEERFE+ A ENEMRE
HEZHEBERME BT XF
TA=Z+—HERAEETRAREBLERZ

EHRFRET

JC °

HASEREE  HRXABER_FT—
—FREAMOBRRE  HAKEZIE
REERZEMRRE  WREZ2HTAE
B2 B EFRIREREZ AT RRET
e MBEHBH  AIHRREERASZ
ROEHIRYESFH - BRARTTER S
NEZ L BESRR  RAMEZTE
BEATBREBERERER o HEK
MEE ENAZRXRN_ZTTENF—
A+ NEREMO.ESEERET L
ZXBAFRHRZBTE T - AR AL ] B ] DA
Rez 7 ANBEZ ALY I REES
- EEREBBERTIRSE : ()%
7B ZMESNERBHZ R RK
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BFEBRELERXERRZ2AFHER
B HANERXZEERA GG RE
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 E &

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE
PREFERRED SHARES/DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

By way of arrangement fee, ASAT has agreed to issue
to the Group and AOF, on Closing Date, five-year
warrants to purchase a total of 5 million ordinary shares
(equivalent to 1 million ADSs, representing 500,000
ADSs for each of the Group and AOF at Old ADS
ratio), exercisable at a price of US$0.01 per ordinary
share (equivalent to US$0.05 per ADS at Old ADS
ratio). In addition, on Closing Date, ASAT will issue
five-year warrants to purchase 15 million ordinary
shares (equivalent to 3 million ADSs, representing 1.5
million ADSs for each of the Group and AOF at Old
ADS ratio), also exercisable at a price of US$0.01 per
ordinary share (equivalent to US$0.05 per ADS at Old
ADS ratio). Accordingly, on Closing Date, the Group
was issued warrants to subscribe for a total of 10
million ordinary shares of ASAT. On issue of the
warrants, no sums are payable to ASAT by the Group.
The consideration of the Group was in form of the
conversion, on a dollar-for-dollar basis, of its account

receivable due from ASAT as at Closing Date.

The fair value of the straight loan feature of the
convertible preferred shares was determined by using
discounted cash flow calculation based upon a group
of debt instruments with similar credit rating and
structure and the observable financial data of ASAT.
The effective interest rate for the straight loan feature

was estimated at 36% per annum at initial recognition.

16.

e SRR MR

“ETAFENA=THILFERE

TRBRELERRE TEEH

A )

ERZHER  ZAXRAERTKAH
BT AT HARRER TS E RAOF - 7]
f% B & ££5,000,0000% £ 4k X @A (IR 8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

16.

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE
PREFERRED SHARES/DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
The fair value of the conversion option of the
convertible preferred shares and the warrants were

determined by using binominal model.

16.

AREREERERE fT£€@
TH®

’

B A%
H

=
52

EERZATRRE LR R E
RFEDFEA_BAAEAETE -

~

Key inputs into the binominal model were as follows: THARKNZEETEAT ¢
At At
30th April, 30th April,
2007 2006
R=-BZtE RZITTF
mA=+H mA=+A
Volatility of share price A 90% 60%
Risk free rate £ [ i ) = 4.525% 4.92%
Dividend yield ZE X 0% 0%
Option life B # 4 HA 3.5 - 4 years 4.5 — 5 years
35 84 & 4.5 & 5%

As at 30th April, 2007, the fair values of the conversion
option of the convertible preferred shares and the
warrants valued by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited, a firm of independent international assets
valuers, amounted to approximately US$5.8 million
(2006: US$6.3 million) or equivalent to approximately
HK$45 million (2006: HK$49 million) and approximately
US$0.7 million (2006: US$1 million) or equivalent to
approximately HK$5 million (2006: HK$8 million)
respectively, resulting in losses arising from changes
in fair values of approximately HK$7 million (2006: gains
of HK$28 million) recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

MN_TZLEWA=+H HEKHE
EFMBERERAR (—RBULBIKREE
B ERNTT) {4 (B 2 AT R AR 18 5k AR 2 BE Bt 4%
BRERBERRREZZLATEIAINOR
5,800,000% 7t (ZZEZ /<4 : 6,300,000
2 JT) 518 & R #45,000,0008 7T (=&
T N F : 49,000,000 ) KA A
700,000% 7T (ZZZE 54 : 1,000,0003
JT) sk H & H 495,000,000 7T (Z T Z X
f : 8,000,000 7T) HATFEEZSHE
4 2 5B #97,000,0008 7T (Z T T XF ¢
Y1 %5 28,000,000/ 7T ) A 47 & W 25 7% 1

7
e
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

INVENTORIES 17. &
2007 2006
—EELE —EETRF
HK$’'M HK$'M
BE®ETT BEBBT
Raw materials and consumables R R KB FE S 26 35
Work in progress F EpK fh 5 8
Finished goods 245K ih 6 5
37 48

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B 5% H b fE U =X1E
The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to AEELFEHEE Y ZB 8N T30E

90 days to its trade customers. The following is an

==

90R - REEH  EZERFEZKRK

aged analysis of trade receivables at the balance sheet

date: DM
2007 2006
—EELF —EETREF
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEER BEAT
Trade receivables B 5 W IE
Within 30 days 308 A 25 17
Between 31 and 60 days 312 60H 16 16
Between 61 and 90 days 61290H 6 10
Over 90 days 90H A E 10 11
57 54
Other receivables H b /B W 5K IB 4 1
61 58
The fair value of the Group’s trade and other R-_FEZL+ENPA=+H ANEFEEZS
receivables at 30th April, 2007 approximated to the REMERZEY A TEELIEEED
corresponding carrying amount. B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLE DUE FROM AN 19. BEUHBE QAR ZEZNE
ASSOCIATE
The Group allows a credit period of 60 to 90 days to REE %%%M“ETZEEHH?%GOE%
its associate. The following is an aged analysis of trade H - R&EER  EIK CI=E k-
receivable due from an associate at the balance sheet ZIEREDITAT -
date:
2007 2006
—EELEHF ZETRF
HK$’'M HKS$'M
BEETT BEATT
Within 30 days 308 & 5 12
Between 31 and 60 days 31260H 5 13
Between 61 and 90 days 61290H 4 17
Over 90 days 90H M £ 7 3
21 45

The fair value of the Group’s trade receivable due from

an associate at 30th April, 2007 approximated to the

corresponding carrying amount.

X

—FZ
— =
N

N

Hﬁ
i)

‘EN
r
{ o| MH

e
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ErFHA=1TH  AEEREK
BHRE A FEAEBER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at

the balance sheet date:

20.

BEZREMEMNKE

REER  EZENRBAZERED TN

T

2007 2006
—E2BLHF —EER

HK$'M HK$'M
BE#BRT BEBT

Trade payables =) AN
Within 30 days 30H A 9 7
Between 31 and 60 days 31260H 7 11
Between 61 and 90 days 61£290H 5 8
Over 90 days 90H M k£ 4 17
25 43
Other payables H th & 3R IR 9 =
34 43

The fair value of the Group’s trade and other payables

at 30th April, 2007 approximated to the corresponding

carrying amount.

RZZEZ+FWMA=+H x5EHESH

REMEMNREZ A FERLERERT
ERE -

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2007



104

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JIV_\éﬂjﬁiﬁ% M;J-EI

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

21.

TRUST RECEIPT LOANS AND BILL 21.

ERERRBERREMNRE

PAYABLES
2007 2006
—EBLE  —TTAE
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBIT
Trust receipt loans B ER 30 28
Bill payables FE T R 7 6
37 34

At the balance sheet date, bill payables, with maturity
date of 30 days, aged with 0 to 30 days. Trust receipt
loans carry a variable interest rate of HIBOR and Prime
Rate and the effective interest rates ranging from 6%
to 9% (2006: 6% to 9%) per annum.

The fair value of the Group’s trust receipt loans and
bill payables at 30th April, 2007 approximated to the

corresponding carrying amount.

B BEA30BFHAZEMNEIE

AN TETE308 - ErlEBEER

FERGEBEMNENZEX

R HARMENFEF6HEINRTE
(ZZTZRNF  6%EI%) °

R_TET+FMA=+H KEEEF
WEEREENER 2 A FEEEAR
FREEMRE -
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

OBLIGATIONS CRYSTALLISED
UNDER GUARANTEES

22. BITRAEERE

2007 2006
—BELEF —TER
HK$’'M HKS$'M
BEBTT BEATT
Operating lease obligations and —FRENEE
industrial grants payable A EE R
within one year TX&EH - 3

The amount represented the obligations crystallised
under guarantees provided by the Company in respect
of operating lease obligations and industrial grants of
its former subsidiaries incorporated in the United
Kingdom from National Assembly for Wales (“NAW?”)
and Welsh Development Agency (“WDA”) in prior years.
In May 2004, the Company came into an agreement
with NAW and WDA for the settlement of the liabilities
in a sum of GBP2.7 million which were unsecured and
interest-free. Pursuant to the agreement, the whole
liabilities was settled during the year ended 30th April,
2007.

HHREEARARUNEFERENER
£ K Sz 2 BB & A B 9 Bl B National
Assembly for Wales ([ NAW]) & Welsh
Development Agency ([WDA|) 1§ 2z &
FHEABEERIXEYMIBHERE
OZEREME -RZZETEEFRA ' &K
N A B NAWR WDAE &K 1% #% ©
2,700,000 R FEEER - ZEEBRE
EHRERE - RigzmE  2HEED
REBEE-_TTLFNA=THILEFERN
BT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

23. SHARE CAPITAL

23. BRZA
Nominal
Number of shares Value
ke #A HE
2006 2007 2006
—TTR “EEtE ZZERE
HK$'M HK$'M

BRET ABAT

Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares of FREESETZ
HK$0.08 each EEelie
At beginning and end of year FENRER 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000 120 120
Redeemable preference shares of BREAEE.BT L
HK$0.02 each EEE LR 500,000,000 10 10
Issued and fully paid: BERIRBRKRA
Ordinary shares of FREE.08%E T
HK$0.08 each LBk
At beginning of year E1) 639,370,152 61 51
Rights issue fitfix - 127,874,034 - 10
Issue upon exercise of warrants RITERBRE R R - 25 - -
At end of year R 767,244,211 61 61

On 8th December, 2005, a special resolution was
passed to approve the issue of 127,874,034 new
ordinary shares by way of rights to holders of shares
in the Company at HK$0.62 per share (the “Rights
Share”) in the proportion of one Rights Share for every
five existing shares (the “Rights Issue”) held by the
qualifying shareholders. The Rights Issue became
unconditional on 30th December, 2005. On 4th
January, 2006, 127,874,034 Rights Shares were
allotted raising approximately HK$79 million, before
expenses, of which approximately HK$60 million was
set off by loan capitalisation with Mr. Li Tung Lok, a
director and a substantial shareholder of the Company
and the remaining balance was used as the general
working capital of the Group. The new shares ranked
pari passu with the existing shares in all respects.

NZZZRF+_ANHE  ARFAEB
BRI Rz R ENHRBETR  RER
062F TMARBRMDFTAE AEIT
127,874,0348% 37 & i@ A% ([HARRMD]) -
HREELSAERRESHEARRE
B&fn BB 2 —RR AR AR AR 5 ([HEAR ) o 4
RER=ZZZTAFT+-A=THKRAE
K - RZZEZTF—AMWA & BB
127,874,084 IRl 7 - & & &
79,000,000 7T (Retf ) - A4
60,000,000 T AIEH AR R ZESEF =
ERRFRALEECERLER  4F
AREREB . —REEES - FIRH
REFTEHREBEROHNEZERS#a -
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Warrants

During the year ended 30th April, 2006, registered
holders of 25 warrants exercised their rights. At 30th
April, 2006 and 2007, the Company had outstanding
warrants of HK$232,730,012 entitling the holders
thereof to subscribe for 130,747,197 ordinary shares
at an exercise price of HK$1.78 per share, subject to
anti-dilutive adjustment, on or before 14th October,
2007.

Share option scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2000 Share
Option Scheme”), which was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on 14th April, 2000 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees, was expired on 13th April, 2005 but its
terms remain in full force and effect in respect of the
outstanding options previously granted. On 29th
November, 2006, a new share option scheme (the
“2006 Share Option Scheme”) has been adopted by
an ordinary resolution of the Company in annual general
meeting. The purpose of the 2006 Share Option
Scheme is to provide the eligible persons (“Eligible
Persons”) as defined in the scheme with the opportunity
to acquire interests in the Company and to encourage
the Eligible Persons to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole. Under
the 2006 Share Option Scheme, the Board of Directors
of the Company may grant options to Eligible Persons,
including, but not limited to, the full-time employees
or directors (excluding Mr. Li Tung Lok) of the Company
and subsidiaries (the “Eligible Employee(s)”) or his or

her associate.

28

IR A ()

AR EE

REBEE-_ZTT"FHNA=+tBHLFE
N B RREE 2 EREFEEATE
BEZHEF RZTEREFR-ZTTL
FOA=+H AR HKRITEZRE
232,730,012/ 7T -
BEBFBEATR-_ZETLFE+A+HA
2 A EHER1.78B L ZITEE (AT T
[z 8 5% A %) R B 130,747, 197h% X i@

B e

20 Af 27 OO 5 S
52% D/jbj\ *’E R

e

i IR RE ST 8

RARABBRBER_-_ZZZTFNA+TMNABR
BRBREMNBRESE(ZZEZE
FHERETE]  EZRARAEER
EEAREERHRER BER_ZTTLF
MA+=RERmM  HEEER AR
mEARTECEREDARTERS -
RZZEZERE+T—HZ+NLA A2 A
RIRRBFARE FRBLEAZREMN
MERETE ([ ZES N FEBRER
g —_EERFEREAZEESLST
ZitERECEERALT([EERA
THBREARAREOKE  WHEE
ERATRARAIRERTES 2 Fa=
BORARRARERG 2 EE - BIE
—EERFHERESE ARAESEE
AAEERATEREBRE mMzEE
ERALTBE(EBTIRR) AR F REHK
BRAZEBEEXESR (TREFTRL
E)([GEBEE])KHBEAL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 HZ —ZZ+FNMA =+ HILFE

23. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 23.
Share option scheme (Continued)
Movements of the outstanding Company’s share
options held by directors and employees under the

2000 Share Option Scheme are as follows:

i NE))

BRESE @

EEREERBE -_STSTEBRESS
FisEmMERTEZARBBRES 2
g

At

30th April,

2006 and 2007

At R=ZZBEAER

Option type 1st May, 2005 Lapsed —EELHF

B A% R 2 R R-ZEZRFHA—H KK mMA=+8
Directors 2=

A 12,910,000 (12,910,000) -
Employees EE

A 6,281,000 (6,281,000) -

B 100,000 (100,000) -

6,381,000 (6,381,000) -

Total FEET 19,291,000 (19,291,000) -
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 {2 —EF+FINA =+ HILFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

No options were granted and exercised during both
years and all outstanding options under the 2000 Share
Option Scheme were lapsed during the year ended
30th April, 2006.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

28

i NE))

BRESTE (B
BE-_ZTTFEERESE  MERY
mIEH RATEEABRE - B MK
T BRESERARE ST AEN
B=+BIEFEERKMR -

BRI BRIE R EFBDT

Exercise

Option type Date of grant Exercise period price

BB IR R A BB TR TEE

HK$

BT

A 28th April, 2000 28th April, 2000 to 25th May, 2005 7.97
ZEEEFWPAFT AR ZEZEZTFWA=-—FNARE
—EERERA=-THA

B 31st May, 2000 31st May, 2000 to 25th June, 2005 8.40

“FTEFEA=+-H

— ==

Under the 2006 Share Option Scheme, the share option
granted by the Company at nil consideration is
exercisable at any time for a period determined by its
directors which shall not be later than the day
immediately preceding the 5th anniversary of the date
of grant, where the acceptance date should not be

later than 28 days after the date of offer.

—EPEFEA=+-AZ
AEARNA-T+EHE

RE-_FTRNFEBRENE - AQAE
FHRLzBREIRESERE 2 HH
NEERTTEE - HZITER I ERNER
REBHFABEFEHN—A  MEMAEH
RN L A #K28E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
WIN

& MR M

For the year ended 30th April, 2007 &, &

23.

“ERELFNA=THIEFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided
therein) of the option under the 2006 Share Option
Scheme shall be determined by the Board of Directors
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the shares; (ii) the closing price per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a
business day; or (i) the average closing price per share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which the options may be granted
under the 2006 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company at
the date of approval of the 2006 Share Option Scheme.
However, the total maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
options must not exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. The number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any one grantee in any 12 months period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue in such 12-month period up to and including
the proposed date of grant, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. No option shall be
granted to the Eligible Persons if the aggregate value
of shares which may be subscribed in respect of
outstanding options exceed (a) in case of an Eligible
Employee, 5 times of his or her then gross annual
salary and (b) in any other cases, HK$5 million, or any
other amount approved by the Board of Directors either
generally or on a case by case basis. No share option
under the 2006 Share Option Scheme has been
granted by the Company since its adoption up to 30th
April, 2007.

28

IR A ()
BRESE @
BREBE_STEFHERESEMZLER
RZATEE (e RBZET BT T T
AE)BEFEETEEETAENAT
WEeREE(RMEAE  ()RNELHBH
(BREXB)BXMEBARERMINZ
ﬁh%ﬁﬁ:ﬁm%%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬂ
FTEEXBMIMEARERMIE
h%mﬁZ%ﬂ@oﬁﬁquﬂiﬁ
RIETERE 2 ERERMS R 2RO
SHETBBEBAR 7#%&_?7A
FHERETEE B ZEBEITRA10% -
i - B ET A AR 1T E R AR A 1T E i AT
TZRNERBE  THREBBARART
BF 2 BB ITRRAR30% °» AEARQAIKRESE
et - RER121E B AR A E fal & Bl
ABRAMEEBEREMS R ZBRMNK
B THEBAAATNRBETYBEER
R B Z1I2 A B2 EETRGD
1% ° HEER AT ZMRITEBRERE
BEIEZARBERO B EBEB @ (B
GEREEBMS) RERZFHAESE
K (o) (Bt (£ o] B b 1552 11 5 ) 5,000,000/
TREESR —MABEREEMILEZ
EREMETE  AITBERZEEBALT
BREBRE ARAWEREBE_ZTTS
FRRESS - sHEEMZAERESR
T LFNA=THHAREEMRE
PR HE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
e ISR MEE

For The year ended 30th April, 2007 B Z —EZ+FMA =+ HILFE

24. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES 24, ROoaBERE

Retained

Capital Investment profits

Share Contributed redemption revaluation Translation (accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses) Total

£ RE REEF

RGEE BHEHR HORE EMRE EXRGE (RHER) @t
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERRT HBERR EHEEEBR EHEER FHEER FEBER HEBER

At 1st May, 2005 RZZEZn%E
hA-H 79 40 12 (1) (1) 52 181

Losses on fair value changes At HERE

of available-for-sale AYEEE
investments ZEB - - - (1) = = (1)
Loss for the year FRER - - - = = (29) (29)

Total recognised expenses EREERAX

for the year ek - - = (1) = (25) (26)
Rights issue of shares B 70 - - - - - 70
Transaction costs BITH R

attributable to issue Eiz

of new shares RHBA (1) - - - - - )
At 30th April, 2006 RZZZRE

MA=+H 148 40 12 2) (1) 27 224
Exchange differences BEBINER

arising on translation of FEEZ

foreign operations ERER = = = = 1 = 1
Gains on fair value changes Al SHERE

of avallable-for-sale ATEEE 2

investments Wa - - - 4 - - 4
Loss for the year EREE - - - = = (81) (81)

Total recognised income ERERARBA

(expenses) for the year (Bx)eas - - = 4 1 (81) (76)
At 30th April, 2007 RZBZtE
MA=t+H 148 40 12 2 - (54) 148
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

e MR MEE

For The year ended 30th April, 2007 B — T +FM A=+ HILFE

24. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

(Continued)

Notes:

Contributed surplus represents the excess of the net assets
of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued as consideration thereof and is
available for distribution to the shareholders of the Company
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or

make a distribution out of the contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its

liabilities as they become due; or

(if) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued

share capital and share premium accounts.

24.

B RERG®E @
B 5 -

BEHBRSREMRERBLREEFERR
ARARMERBBAREMETROZEEE
B REBERE-NAN-FR8DE(BFT
) ZERHKRUDIRTARBER - A
- ERIBRT  ARBETBEEHR
4 P B R 3K {5 BB 21 0 R

&
S
=i
EU]}
5N
A
anp
B
E
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ez}

x
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/m]H &
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il

(ii) RAIBEZAIERBEGREY KM
LPREEFE  BEBITRAREKGD G
BIR=FZHF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
e ISR MEE

For The year ended 30th April, 2007 B Z —EZ+FMA =+ HILFE

25. BORROWINGS 25. BE
2007 2006
—EELHF —EETREF
HK$’'M HKS$'M
ER- 3w BEBTT
Secured long term bank loans AEESEMARBART
(Note a) repayable: ER(MsFa) » -
On demand or within one year REREEIN —FA - 2
Other secured long term loans HAEEHMEBEER R
(Note a) repayable: B (fEa) » -
On demand or within one year BERKEEIR —FA 35 24
More than one year but not —FAEBEAEBR
exceeding two years R F - 13
35 37
Other unsecured long term AEEBHMEKARE
loans repayable: BRR :
On demand or within one year BREXKEEREIN—FR - 1
Loans from a director (Note b) BREKEECZES
repayable on demand E#(f5Eb) 10 10
45 50
Less: Amounts due within one year o N —F AR H 5
shown under current liabilities EmEafE 2 RE (45) (37)
- 13
Notes: B3 -
(a) The loans are secured on certain plant and equipment (a) IWERARER S TS RELHE
of the Group. T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JIV_\éﬂjﬁiﬁi ng}

For The year ended 30th April, 2007 B Z —ZEZ+F A =+HILFE

25.

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o) The loans are advanced from Mr. Li Tung Lok, a
director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company, which are interest-free, unsecured and
repayable on demand. The fair value of the Group’s
loans from a director at 30th April, 2007 approximated

to the corresponding carrying amount.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also
equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s fixed
rate borrowings is ranging from 5% to 9% per annum

for the current year (2006: 5% to 8% per annum).

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the

relevant group entities are set out below:

B8 @
MsE © (B)

(b) ERTHARBESREIERRFR
LELEEL ARRE - BERWNRE
RER - AEBRESMEANERR
R EMB=tHZATERA
HEREERS °

AEE  AEBZETEHNEEEZAEX
FE(FEEREHANER)N TBF5%EI%
(ZEEZRF : BFES%E8%) °

2007 2006

—EELE =il g s

HK$'M HKS$'M

HE T BET

United States Dollars ETT - 2
Renminbi AR # 35 38
35 40

The fair value of the Group’s borrowings at 30th April,
2007 approximated to the corresponding carrying

amount.

EER-_ZZLFWOA=+H
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

e ISR MEE

For The year ended 30th April, 2007 B Z —EZ+FMA =+ HILFE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
At the balance sheet date and during the year, deferred
tax liabilities (assets) have been recognised in respect

of the temporary differences attributable to the

26. EEHKAE
NEEARERN  AEEDHUTSE
TEREERRELERELE (BE)

following:
Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
R BETE RBEER et
HK$'M HK$’'M HK$’'M
BEET BEETR BEER
At 1st May, 2005 RZZETRF
A HA—H 21 (20) 1
(Credit) charge to consolidated RERE W&
income statement (3 3) FBr (19) 18 (1)
At 30th April, 2006 RZTEXRF
mMA=+8 2 (@) -
Charge (credit) to consolidated N
income statement Mk (3)%) 10 (10) -
At 30th April, 2007 R-ZZ2tHF
B=+H 12 (12) -

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$513 million (2006: HK$494 million)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$68
million (2006: HK$8 million) of such losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$445 million (2006: HK$486 million) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

REER  AEBEXRPAZRBERE
513,000,000 &t (= F T X F
494,000,000 7T ) 7] A 1 K 85 K 2K &
M ERZEEERRELCHEEE
68,000,000 7t (ZZ T /<4 : 8,000,000
PETT) ¢ B R A TR ORISR R s A I 4
Bt EH £2445,000,0008 7L (ZZE T X F ¢
486,000,0007% 7o) FERELEF B E E ©
ZRGEEA BB o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
JIV_\éﬂjﬁiﬁi ng}

For The year ended 30th April, 2007 B Z —ZEZ+F A =+HILFE

27.

28.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 27. HE—KEAQ A
During the year, the Group disposed of a subsidiary to FR - AEEIZIR SR EL 2,000,000/
an independent third party for a cash consideration of TH—&BIYE=FLE—RKBA
approximately HK$2 million. The carrying amount of A ZMBARIRNEHERBMZFEER
the net assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal E{EA185,000/8 T « B LEZWE A
were HK$185,000 which essentially represented the A EZERRIREMEE -
golf club membership owned by the subsidiary.
The subsidiary disposed of in the current year did not AEEHEZHNBAREAEB 2RSS
contribute significantly to the Group’s cash flows or MENLLEBEWESKER °
operating results.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. EAREE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding REEH  REBEBRBITCERNASE
capital commitments as follows: U
2007 2006
—EELEF ZTTRF
HK$’'M HKS$'M
BEBR BEBT
Capital expenditure in respect of BHEBERIYN
acquisition of property, plant and BRTELRE M BT
equipment contracted for but not RIERE 2 ME
provided in the consolidated e REE
financial statements EARRX 2 2
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29.

30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

e ISR MEE

For The year ended 30th April, 2007 B Z —EZ+FMA =+ HILFE

LEASE COMMITMENTS 29. HHEE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments REEH @ AEBERBETAIHUEZ &%
in respect of premises for future minimum lease MOEEEREFIN2ERZERE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases, SXHZEBARAT
which fall due as follows:
2007 2006
—ZEELHF ZETREF
HK$’M HK$'M
BEAET BEBIT
Within one year —F R 13 11
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFHAT (BEEERT) 36 37
Over five years 8 18 87 96
136 144
Leases are negotiated for a term of twenty years for RAEETEESRENS  AHNKE =1
certain production facilities in the PRC and terms of FHBAER  mEMEFELHAER —=
one to five years for other premises with fixed monthly hEHEYN  YEEBABEEES -
rentals.
RETIREMENT AND PENSION 30. BERKREEZEEE

SCHEMES

The Group participates in two defined contribution
schemes, which are an Employee Retirement Scheme
registered under Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory
(the “MPF Scheme”)
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund

Provident Fund Scheme

Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of these
schemes are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of trustees.

AEE2EMETHEERTE > AR
REBEBERAKGERDI B 2R E R
I ([BERARFE ) MR _FZTTHF
T ARBRHMERESEAIRLZ B
HERAESFE ([RERAE]) - %F
FECEEASRAERTURESEA
BEASEEEDHAFTA °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
ll"-\élﬂ\jﬁﬁi MT.I-EI

For The year ended 30th April, 2007 B Z —ZEZ+F A =+HILFE

30.

31.

RETIREMENT AND PENSION
SCHEMES (Continued)

All full time employees are eligible to join the ORSO
Scheme after completion of three continuous months
of service with the Group and opt to contribute a fixed
percentage of 3% or 5% of their monthly basis salary
whereas the Group contributes an equivalent amount
to that scheme. After December 2000, all employees
exceeding a specified income range are required to
join the MPF Scheme and contribute a fixed percentage
(currently 5%) of their relevant monthly income but
cap at a maximum amount of HK$1,000 per month to
the scheme, which contribution is matched by the
Group. For employees joining both schemes, the total
contributions made by each of the Group and the
employees, which exceed the mandatory contributions
required by the MPF Scheme are paid to the ORSO
Scheme as voluntary contribution.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the PRC government. The Group is required to
contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

Contributions to the above schemes for the year ended
30th April, 2007 made by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$2 million (2006: HK$2 million).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 30th April, 2007, plant and equipment with a
carrying value of HK$32 million (2006: HK$67 million)
were pledged to secure certain banking facilities, bank
loan and other loans granted to the Group.

30.

31.

BARAREZEE @)

EzREENEERBEASEE R =1
ARBYEERS BB E RS - XA
EERERNAFH 23%HE%ETE B DL 1E
M - A E R AR & 88 4 &5
EIfFHMR - RZTTTEF+ A% -
AEBLHEERABEZEEHALHE
REEEE  HEREAKRAZEER
b GRES 356%) ¥ 81 /F 50 -
A ERAE A1,000/8 7T + A< & B A&
RS BIEL MR - RS EZMBR
EMEBME AREKEESZAZH
TR AR ER R th 58 AR & 5t 8 AT AR RE 2 3R I
REBMNERERAGE - FRBERHE

Eon
A °

AEBZTFHREEHCD2MPERTE
BBERABAEE - AEEARR
KEMFEIFELHFERAETAESLLZ
W LEBBREEN - AEEENK
B ZARERELEEHRNR -

HE_ZTTLFMA=1+HILFE K
& B [7) k2t 51 8 4 349 A& 2,000,000 7T
(ZZEZ /X : 2,000,000 7T)

BEEEKH
RZZEZTLtHFWA=+H " EEE
32,000,000 T (Z T T X &
67,000,000/ 7t ) 2 # 28 & % H 19 B &
AOUREETFTAEEZ2E TRITH
E - RTERMEMER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

e ISR MEE

For The year ended 30th April, 2007 B Z —EZ+FMA =+ HILFE

32. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 30th April, 2006,

33.

()

The consideration for the acquisition of
investment in convertible preferred shares of
ASAT amounting to US$7.5 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$58 million) as described
in Note 16 was set off by the trade receivable
due from ASAT.

Approximately HK$60 million out of the total
proceeds of approximately HK$79 million of the
Rights Issue as described in Note 23 was set
off by the loan capitalisation with Mr. Li Tung
Lok, a director and a substantial shareholder of

the Company.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of its business, the Group

entered into the following connected and related party

transactions:

Connected and related party:

(a)

32.

33.

RERXRS

HE-_ZTAAFHNA=THLFERN -

(@  BIMEE16RTAL - BB R KX
ZOBEBREBERZREAR
7,500,000% 7T (#H & B %
58,000,000/ 7T) -+ Lt T3 LA & U 22
WX 2B HHIEE -

(b) M FE23ATHL - FEHRFTIE K
TH 42 58 #979,000,0007% 7o+ 49
60,000,000/ T Jh AR A A1 E E 3k
FERRFRALEECERLE
TS -

REKBEBHRIS
GRS TRES T Sl
RBBRS -

74 12 I R Bt

ASAT group (a) #EXXKEHE
2007 2006
S e eSS
HK$’'M HKS$'M
EEE HEET
Sales of integrated circuit 5 & &K E I S| 4R 4E -
leadframes, heatsinks AR A28
and stiffeners Inag 12 76 178
Acquisition of convertible 8 A AT #2 iR
preference shares B - 58
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For The year ended 30th April, 2007 B Z —ZEZ+F A =+HILFE

33.

34.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Related parties:

(b) Interest-free loans are obtained from a director,

as disclosed in Note 25.

(c) The remuneration of directors and senior
management mainly relating to the short-term
benefits during the year was HK$24 million
(2006: HK$28 million).

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following are the particulars regarding the
Company’s subsidiaries as at 30th April, 2007 which
principally affect the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group as the directors are of the opinion that a full list
of all the subsidiaries will be of excessive length. These
subsidiaries operate principally in the place of
incorporation unless otherwise indicated.

Place of
establishment/

Name of subsidiary  incorporation Principal activities

33.

34.

Paid up

HERBEBEXZ @

RARE D

) MR-—UEEMSIRZRERFE
PP FE 258 5% o

) FA EERSAEEABZM
® c EFEREBHEMND
24,000,000/ 7T (Z T Z X F -
28,000,000/ 7T) °

ol NS

ATRARFAR _ZEZTLFHA=1H
TEFEAEE XS BEHERFBZ
MEARFEE EERA - JIHMAAN
BRARZAERBNRILE - RIESAM
B REWMBRREEREEMAM

s
Ehag e o

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital/
issued share capital held by

BEEMRE/

registered capital/ ERTRAZEELH
Issued share capital Company subsidiary

WEAREH R/ ZMes FEXH BRERRA ERARE NG W 2 A
% %
The Industrial Cayman Investment holding 2,050 ordinary shares 2.44 97.56
Investment Islands RE R of HK$1 each
Company Limited HERE 2,050 B EE
BT ERR
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

34. MIBRATRFHE @

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital/
issued share capital held by

Place of Paid up EREMBRR/
establishment/ registered capital/ ERTRAZEELH
Name of subsidiary  incorporation Principal activities Issued share capital Company subsidiary
WEARER R/ ZMes TEXE BRERRA ERATRE NG ol P
% %

QPL (Holdings) Hong Kong Investment holding 408,000,772 ordinary 100 -

Limited BB REAR shares of HK$0.04 each
mECXERAR 408,000,772k SR E A

0.04BTTZ EBR

QPL Limited Hong Kong Manufacture and sale of 2 ordinary shares of = 100

(Note a) B integrated circuit HK$1 each and
mEERAA leadframes, heatsinks 1,000 non-voting

GEE) and stiffeners deferred shares of

AERHESKER HK$1 each (Note b)
Sl HE - AR REREEIAT L EBRR
pIE:RES 1,000k BREETETLLZ
BREEELRD (M 3tb)

Talent Focus Hong Kong Manufacture and sale of 2 ordinary shares of 50 50

Industries Limited 2% stamped leadframes HK$1 each

(Note a) and moulds REREEIATL AR
HRREXARAT HERHERR

(Wt &ta) SIRERIE
QPL (US) Inc. United States of  Distribution of integrated 150,603 ordinary shares 66.4 33.6

America

*H

circuit leadframes
and investment holding
PHEK TR RER

REZK

of no par value, paid

up to US$4,071,281
150,603/ M E B & Ak

B A4,071,281E T
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For The year ended 30th April, 2007 B Z —ZEZ+F A =+HILFE

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

34. MIBRARFHE @

Proportion of

nominal value of

registered capital/

issued share capital held by

Place of Paid up EREMBRSR/
establishment/ registered capital/ ERTRAZHERLH
Name of subsidiary  incorporation Principal activities Issued share capital Company subsidiary
WEARERE Ri/mits FEXR EHZMBE /BRORE NG| HEAR
% %
REEFIZCRI)  PRC Distribution of US$3,000,000 - 100
BRAT # stamped leadframes 3,000,000 1o
(Note it 3E ¢) and moulds
DEHBEIFERTE
Notes: M 5
(a) Operating principally in the PRC. (a) FERPELE -
(b) BASEREZELERD ER LY

(b) The deferred shares, which are held by the Group,
are practically of no economic value.

(c) A foreign wholly-owned corporate.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

at the end of the year.

BEEERE -

() RINEREREALRE -

VTEMRBRARARFEFRETEMNEEE

* o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M HE

The consolidated income statement and the consolidated A N A&fiEE AERED TR K ERE A T B H
balance sheet of the Group for the past five financial years, ®ZASEBERABETREE Z2HGEEREZERR

as extracted from the Group’s published audited consolidated #RABEABX :

financial statements, are set out below:

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

melER
For the year ended 30th April
BEWA=1+HLEFE

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—EE=F —FTENFE —TTREFE ZTTREFE ZEELHF
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$’'M
BBET BESBT ABABBT BEEL HEBR
(restated) (restated)
(FeE73) (#e=:751)
Turnover = 419 470 418 414 308
(Loss) profit before taxation B FiAT (E518) & F (540 6 (271) (25) (102)
Taxation T 1E 63 4 - 21
(Loss) profit for the year FERRK
attributable to FEAE (B18)
shareholders & Al (477) 8 (267) (25) (81)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B BE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET SoEEBEBER
At 30th April
REBE=+H
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—EE=F —_TTNF —ZTEFRF —_TTF ZEBFLEF
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$’'M
BEBT BEAT BAEBT BEAT BEBR
(restated) (restated)
(F&E3) (#&E:351)
Investment properties wEMZE 149 182 - - -
Property, plant and I
equipment K& 339 85 276 241 162
Interest in an associate B & N B 2 225 169 2) = -
Investments in securities BHEEE 5 5 4 - -
Investment in convertible Al A% 18 o %
preferred shares ®E
— loan portion — B E D - = = = -
Available-for-sale investments A] it §5 & #& & - - - 3 -
Restricted cash X PR 3R & 18 18 - - -
Current assets MEEE 172 171 208 223 203
Current liabilities mEBE (311) (254) (213) (164) (152)
597 626 273 303 213
Share capital fi% 72 51 51 51 61 61
Share premium and reserves B% 173 8 & % 425 448 179 224 148
Shareholders’ fund REE & 476 499 230 285 209
Long term borrowings REEE 112 108 37 13 -
Obligations crystallised BATHER
under guarantees B = 8 = = -
Accrued expenses FEET & R 6 6 5 5 4
Deferred tax liabilities BRERIEEE 3 5 1 - -
597 626 273 303 213
Amounts disclosed above for the years ended 30th April, FtXWEREZE —_ZZTNEE =T HFEMA

2004 and 2005 have been restated to reflect the change in
accounting policy for the adoption of new HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA for the year ended 30 April 2006.

STRLEEZRBCEET) -
5“ﬁ¢EH:+E¢¢FIﬁ%§%@

AR 3 E B I HRE BT
52 F i -

R EZE—

5tep
5t
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